Policy Committee

THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COUNTY

November 2, 2023
At 9:00 a.m.
ECIDA Offices
95 Perry Street, 4" Floor Conference Room
Buffalo, New York 14203

Call Meeting to Order

Approval of the September 14, 2023 Policy Committee Meeting Minutes (Pages 2-4)
Project Matrix (Page 5)

Project Presentation (Staff — Company Q&A)

a) 1175 Delaware Place (Pages 6-38)

b) Lactalis American Group, Inc. (Pages 39-74)

2024 Meeting Schedule (Page 75)

Sodexo/Uniland Update

Adjournment - Next Meeting December 14, 2023 at 9:00 a.m.



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

DATE AND PLACE:

PRESENT:

EXCUSED:

OTHERS PRESENT:

GUESTS:

September 14, 2023 at the Erie County Industrial Development
Agency, 95 Perry Street, 4™ Floor Conference Room, Buffalo, New
York 14203

Denise Abbott, Hon. April Baskin, Rev. Mark E. Blue, Zachary Evans;
Richard Lipsitz, Jr.; Brenda W. McDuffie; Laura Smith; David J.
State; and Lavon Stephens

Hon. A.J. Baynes; Hon. Bryon W. Brown; Dr. Susan McCartney; Hon.
Glenn R. Nellis, Hon. John Tobia and Paul Vukelic

John Cappellino, President and Chief Executive Officer; Beth
O’Keefe, Vice President of Operations; Grant Lesswing, Director of
Business Development; Soma Hawramee, Compliance Portfolio
Manager; Brian Krygier, Director of Information Technology; Carrie
Hocieniec, Operations Assistant/Assistant Secretary; and Robert G.
Murray, General Counsel/Harris Beach PLLC

Alex Carducci on behalf of the City of Buffalo; Danielle Robillard on
behalf of Aakron Rule COrporation; Rachel Heckl, Joseph Makowski
on behalf of 467 Richmond Avenue, LLC and Mark Sadkowski on
behalf of Life Technologies

There being a quorum present at 9:06 a.m., the Meeting of the Policy Committee was
called to order by Mr. Lipsitz.

MINUTES

The minutes of the August 3, 2023, Policy Committee meeting were presented. Upon
motion made by Mr. Blue to approve of the minutes, and seconded by Ms. McDuffie, the Policy
Committee meeting minutes were unanimously approved.

PROJECT MATRIX

Mr. Cappellino reviewed the Agency’s Project Matrix. Mr. Lipsitz directed that the report

be received and filed.

Page 1 of 3
2



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

COMPLIANCE MATTERS

Aakron Rule Corporation. Mr. Cappellino noted that, per the ECIDA’s Recapture Policy,
and based on continuing Covid-19 pandemic impacts, the Chair and staff believe, in this case,
that it would be beneficial for the company to discuss its current employment status and
continued efforts and strategies to obtain new employees. Ms. Robillard spoke on behalf of the
company and described Covid-19 pandemic impacts including, the fact that the business was
shut down and it lost most of its workforce, how the overall post-pandemic landscape continues
to impact the company’s hiring efforts, efforts to attract and retain workforce, and to stabilize
and grow the business.

General discussion ensued. Ms. McDuffie thanked Ms. Robillard for describing the
company’s efforts to find and hire employees, stating it is important for the company’s
challenges and efforts to be heard.

At this point in time, Ms. Baskin joined the meeting.

467 Richmond Avenue/REVPAC. Mr. Cappellino described the Company’s project as
approved by the ECIDA in June of 2017, including the investment, incentives and the
Company’s job retention and creation requirements. Mr. Cappellino gave a status update, noted
that the Company began using ECIDA sales tax benefits in late 2018, and then the Covid-19
pandemic impacts were felt by the company and ultimately halted the project. The project is
incomplete and is currently 66% below its employment retention requirements. Presently, the
project is not completed or open, but a portion of the originally approved sales tax exemption
benefits have been provided to the Company.

Ms. Heckl spoke on behalf of the Company and she reviewed the project’s status, the
Company’s expenditures, to date, to undertake the project, noting the project was halted during
the Covid-19 pandemic and that, post-Covid, the project’s costs have skyrocketed. Ms. Heckl
stated that the project is about 50% completed and over $5 million has been invested. Ms. Heckl
also confirmed that the Company has identified a new lender.

At this point in time, Mr. Evans left the meeting.

Mr. Makowski, attorney for the Company, next stated that he hopes to have a new lender
commitment letter shortly, to allow the project to go forward. He also asked if the Policy
Committee will allow more time for the company to secure lending commitments to allow the
project to move forward.

Ms. Heckl also stated that the City of Buffalo Section 485-a real property tax exemption
benefit may no longer be available to the Company, and the Company may need to seek an IDA
PILOT Agreement.

Ms. Smith spoke in favor of amending the existing project assuming new bank financing

is obtained.

Page 2 of 3
3



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

General discussion ensued.

Ms. Heckl stated that the commitment letter is anticipated within 45-60 days, and the City
of Buffalo should make its 485-a eligibility determination within that same time period.

Mr. Blue moved to provide the Company with a 60-day time period to obtain a financing
commitment and to obtain a City of Buffalo 485-a RRTL eligibility determination.

The Committee discussed the motion, and consensus emerged that the Committee would
look to amend and extend the project approval if the financing commitment and City real
property tax abatement were both obtained.

Ms. Abbott seconded the motion. Mr. Lipsitz called for the vote and the motion was
unanimously approved.

Life Technologies Corporation. Mr. Cappellino reviewed the Life Technologies West
expansion project, and noted that although the construction proceeded during the Covid-19
pandemic, it was only able to utilize 88.3% local labor, just short of the 90% requirement,
resulting in a 1.7% shortfall. Mr. Cappellino confirmed that the shortage was due to a lack of
local labor being otherwise available to work on the project.

Ms. McDuffie moved and Mr. Blue seconded the motion to waive the local labor policy
at the 90% level based on the Company’s 88.3% local labor rate and due a lack of local labor
availability. Mr. Lipsitz called for the vote and the project was then unanimously approved.

There being no further business to discuss, Mr. Lipsitz adjourned the meeting at
10:19 am.

Dated: September 14, 2023

Elizabeth A. O’Keefe, Secretary

Page 3 of 3
4



asnay w>=amv<ﬁ

T [oge6r8ETS | [s66 Jeeer [~ [ 3 | etz [ev |82 | [toe'oee’zees [ 11 | 12301 £207
L [ add ] 1 D s (W i P T e | eze'8€T%9S [ v [ eioiang asnoy sandepy
sqof sqof pajeas) pajeas) pauledy paujeisy wnowy afoad
UNowy sAnRUdY| 19nolids  uonsuo) sqof 1d sqofid4 sqofid  sqof 14 Jiuawisanuj axeagrd isjelo), isjejo
T 005°v69% sih Z + nep 6L 791 0 0 T 14 0 000°09Z°0€S 000°009°SES epuemeuc) uoneasasald| eg-130
uonajdwod 103fosd PIOYSDIYL %58 yled 42353YaIsam
18T 895°80'€S SIBIA 0T 9S€ (U SQor sz 0 43 0 (1744 TSLTTY'ETS 64T°995°22% Epuemeuc) eduBWY YUON 3417 YINI| £Z-d3S
10714 J0 poliad MIN - %S8 PIOYSa4Y1 %58
4 OSL‘ESTS SIAZ + aep 6T 9€ .0 [4 0 0 0 6895975 LYOLLY'SS ojeyng OT ‘Head|ez-Inr
uons|dwod afoid PlOYSaJY) %S8 0OET/$9181008Sy UBLIINEL]
ST 989°CTT'ES SIBBA OT LET TST sqor et ST 0 SE 91 629°201°'8CS 66L°L90'EES ojeyng uayduy Asessiuwio) Sdg|ez-1nf
1071d jo pouad M3N - %S98 Ploysa4y1 %58
581 SLEYSYS SIA Z +23ep £LST 44 $qof 90T ot ozt 0 0s 796'SP6'ZS 000052915 epuemeuo] S3UIP|OH 1e1s3 |eaY }IEIS| £Z-unf
uonajdwoa 1aafosd MIN - %58 PIOYSIY %S8
Ela g SZS'6T6S S1BIA 0T 9€S 0L sqof ST 0 ST 4 vie 000°009°€TS 000°000'91% BJI3UAS IS *JU] ‘s3anpoud pood eulsoy|gz-unf
107Id jo pouad M3N - %58 PIOYsaiy3 %58
6¢°1 00S‘80TS SIA T + B1ep 128 b4 0 0 0 o] 14 796'SY6°TS 8E8'SIV'ES ofeyng PRID| £T-Aey
uoliajdwiod 1afosd ploysaiyl %58 $91BD 0G/2IURIUOWN AL
1233 Lyb'vPIT'TS SIA T + 23ep 6 19T qort Z T 0 0 T67'859°6TS 8€9°LTT'€TS epuemeucy DT g2-1dy
uole|dwoa afoid MON - %58 PlOYSRIYL %58 10 umo} | ‘sa1adoigd $3004g PUE POOM
L61 0Z6'006°TS SIE3A OT (014 SEE 0 0 0 0 08T 00S'£ET'S9S 008°0S£'9.$ ew|3 "oup ‘doo | £g-1eN
1071d jo pouad PloYysaiyl %58
681 STT'0TPS S1BBA £ 8¢ 8¢ sqof S€ Z ot [4 174 0€T'0EE'LS 008°c79'8S ojeyng 0007 uswywwo) | £7-q9a4
1071d 40 pouad MIN - %58 Pioys2uyl %58
[A a4 00S'TT9% SIAZ +anep 0st (474 Sqof o¢ 0 [474 0 0 0£9°£57'£T8 008°£90°Z€S ojejng (OT1 @AY [3L3H 96€(£2-994
uopeajdwon pafoid MIN - %58 ploysaiyl %458
e Ml s Boes i T TN L [T
oney
jauag $qQor paieas) aq| paieald aq| pauieldy| pauteiny JUBLAHWOD junowy 133load umo | fAuD aeq
1500 Unowy.salu3aY| | wia) Jo 1dua]| Jano||ids| sqofasuo)| uoneasnqor| orsqorid| o1sqoriy SQOf.1d| SqOf 14| IUSWASIAUJ WNWIUN| /IUBUWISIAU 31eAI] 193[044 awep 19ioad| |eacaddy
€20¢ - panoaddy saanuadu| xey




1175 Delaware / Delaware Place / 1175 Delaware Capital, LL.C

$ 16,750,000

PRIVATE INVESTMENT INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION

ELIGIBILITY

¢ NAICS Section - 531390

COMPANY INCENTIVES

¢ Estimated Property Tax Savings
of $ 478,884

o Upto $ 547,286 in sales tax
savings

e 3/4 of 1% of the final mortgage
amount up to $ 91,698

JOBS & ANNUAL PAYROLL

o Current / Retained Jobs: 0

o Est. salary/yr. of jobs retained: $0
e Current Annual Payroll: $ 0

e Projected new jobs: 2 PT

o Est. salary/yr. of jobs created:
$27,500

2PT

e Construction Jobs: 124

¢ Total jobs after project completion:

PROJECTED COMMUNITY
BENEFITS*

e Term: 7 yrs. from project
completion

e NET Community Benefits:
$10,440,516

e Spillover Jobs: 58

e Total Payroll: $9,704,899

INCENTIVE COST/
COMMUNITY BENEFIT RATIO
(discounted at 2%)*

Incentives: $1,083,934
Community Benefit: 10,395,356

Cost: Benefit Ratio
. 1:10

Project Title: Delaware Place
Project Address: 1175 Delaware Ave, Buffalo, NY 14209
(Buffalo School District)
Agency Request

A property, sales and mortgage recording tax abatement in connection with the adaptive reuse
of a 58,000 sq ft commercial building located in the Delaware / West Ferry neighborhood.

Building Acquisition $ 2,350,000
Building Renovation $ 9,700,000
Non- Manufacturing Equipment $ 434,700
Soft Costs/Other $4.265.300
Total Project Cost $ 16,750,000
85% $ 14,237,500
Company Description

The applicant, 1175 Delaware Capital, LLC is a limited liability company whose sole
member is Dr Fadi Dagher. Dr Dagher and his son, Kevin are the founders of Cedarland
Development Group, a rapidly growing new generation of real estate development companies
in Buffalo, NY. For the past decade, Cedarland has focused on developing blighted properties
on the City’s East and lower West sides focusing on urban renewal and sustainable
development efforts. Completed projects include: Creekview Apartments (19 unit E.
Ambherst apartment building) and The Grid (217 unit residential project in the City of
Buffalo).
Project Description

Delaware Place is located at 1175 Delaware in the City of Buffalo. Most recently, the
property was a nursing home operated by Emerald South. The building is 58,000 sq ft and
will incorporate 83 apartment units and 1 commercial space. The project is a gut rehab that
focuses on NY’s green initiative incorporating energy efficient water usage, HVAC,
appliances and sustainable building materials. A heavy focus will be on tenant quality of life
with improved indoor air quality, green roof, bike storage and EV charging available. The
studio units will be within the 80% AMI level. 30% of the units will be furnished to
accommodate a growing demand by tenants who seek furnished units while they focus on
their careers. The property is close to City highlights including Delaware Park, the Central
Business District and the Buffalo Niagara Medical Campus.

# of Units SqFt Rent Range

22 studio 345 - 400 $1,000

57 one-bedroom 525 -560 $1,508 - $1,538
4 two-bedroom 715 - 800 $1,965 - $2,000

* Cost Benefit Anatysis Tool powered by MRB Group



Economic Impact: Inform Analytics Cost-Benefit Analysis

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency uses the Cost Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MRB Group to assess the
economic impact of a project applying for incentives. A Cost-Benefit Analysis is required by Section 859-a (5)(b) of General
Municipal Law. For the complete Cost Benefit Analysis — please see the attached MRB Cost Benefit Calculator.

Cost: Incentives

Tax Exemption Amount
Property S 478,884
£ | sales $ 547,286
S | Mortgage Recording $ 91,698
Total $1,117,868
Discounted at 2% $1,083,934
Benefit: Projected Community Benefit*
Region Recipient | Revenue Type S Amount**
Erie Individuals | Payroll Construction $9,337,714
County Payroll Permanent $ 367,185
%) Public Property Taxes S 119,724
r Sales Taxes S 80,672
z Other - NFTA $ 30,566
@ | New York | Public income Taxes S 436,720
State Sales Taxes S 67,934
Total Benefits to EC + NYS*** $10,440,516
Discounted at 2% $10,395,356
%k %k

* Cost Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MRB Group

*includes direct & indirect S over project period

may not sum to total due to rounding

Discounted Cost $ 1,083,934
Discounted Benefit $10,395,356
Ratio 1:10

Conclusion: The Cost Benefit for this project is: 1:10 For every $1 in costs (incentives), this project provides $10 in
benefits (payroll & tax revenue). Note: For Erie County, every $1 in costs (incentives) provides $13 in benefits to

the community,

New Tax Revenue Estimated

Additional Local

PILOT Type

Current Yearly
Taxes

Estimated New

Assessed Value |Revenue over

Additional County

Abatement Period

Revenue Over
Abatement Period

New Yearly Taxes
Upon Expiration of
Abatement Period

7 Year Standard PILOT

{note 8™ Year at Full Taxes)

Economic inclusion Program
PILOT: abatement period =
8 years

$29,900

$19,237 $69,306

+$13,741 + 549,505
44,825,000 $32,977 $118,811

$19,237 $69,306

$115,415

Combined Tax Rate: § 23.92




Retail Determination

Project Use Sq Ft Cost % Project Cost

Housing 57,700 $16,665,000 99.5%

Retail / Commercial 300 S 85,000 0.5%
58,000 $16,750,000 100.0%

The retail component of the project is less than 30% of the project costs and therefore no sign off is required.

Draft Recapture Material Terms

Condition Term Recapture Provision
Total Investment At project completion Investment amount >= 85% of project amount.
Total project amount = $ 16,750,000
85% = $ 14,237,500
Employment Coincides with recapture period | Maintain Base = 0
Projected =2 PT
Create 85% of Projected =0
Recapture Employment = n/a
Local Labor Construction period Adherence to policy including quarterly reporting
Pay Equity Coincides with recapture period | Adherence to Policy
Unpaid Tax Coincides with recapture period | Adherence to Policy
Recapture Period Coincides with 7-year PILOT Recapture of Property Taxes, State & Local Sales
Taxes and Mortgage Recording Tax

Recapture applies to: Property Taxes, State & Local Sales Taxes and Mortgage Recording Tax

Pursuant to New York State General Municipal Law, the agency shall modify, recover, recapture or terminate any financial assistance
taken by the company that is in violation of the GML. At completion of the project company must certify i) total investment amount
is equal to or greater than 85% of the anticipated project amount; ii) company has maintained jobs (FTE) and created jobs (FTE),
iii) confirm adherence to local labor policy during construction and iv) its adherence to unpaid tax/pay equity policies for recapture

term.

e  x/x/23: Public hearing held.

Recapture

Project ECIDA History

e Minor Site Plan Review City of Buffalo Planning Board Approval — No SEQRA compliance required.

e 11/29/23: Lease/Leaseback Inducement Resolution presented to the Board of Directors

s 9/28/2022: 950 Broadway, LLC: A sales tax and mortgage recording tax abatement (up to$ 592,040) in connection with the

Company History

adaptive reuse of a 40,570 sq ft commercial building located in the City of Buffalo’s East Side.




ADAPTIVE REUSE REPORT &
EVALUATIVE CRITERIA
1175 Delaware Capital LLC / Delaware Place

Age of Structure (must be at least 20 years
old and present functional challenges to
redevelopment

Structure is 50 years old. Functional
challenges to redevelopment include:

Structure has been vacant or underutilized
for a minimum of 3 years (defined as a
minimum of 50% of the rentable square
footage of the structure being utilized for a
use for which the structure was not designed
or intended). Project promotes the
elimination of slum and blight.

Property has been vacant for 4 years and is
“an eyesore due to the dated facade in an
otherwise nice (upscale) neighborhood.”
Without this rehab, the building will fall
into further disrepair and be even more
challenging to rehab.

Structure is not generating significant
rental income (defined as 50% or less than
the market rate income average for that
property class

The structure is not generating rental
income currently.

Project is in compliance with the investment
and growth criteria of the Framework for
Regional Growth. The redevelopment
supports or aligns with Regional or Local
Development Plans

This project aligns with the Framework for
Reginal Growth as it brings development to
a vacant / underutilized site, is supported by
public transportation and encourages
walkable neighborhoods and mixed income
housing.

Demonstrated evidence of financial obstacle
to development without ECIDA or other
public assistance (cash flow projections
documenting costs, expenses and revenues
indicating below average return on
investment rate as compared to regional
industry averages)

Financial obstacles to development include
current market conditions (rising interest
rates) severely affecting the feasibility of the
project. The projected ROI is 3.4% with
ECIDA assistance, 3.7% without. Both are
below ROI comparisons per benchmark ROI
for urban high- risk projects nationally.

Demonstrated support of local government
entities

Letter of support from City of Buffalo Mayor
pending

LEED/Renewable Resources

The rehab of this facility will focus on
NY’s Green Initiative focusing on
incorporating energy efficient water
usage, HVAC, appliances and
sustainable building materials. Other
features include improved indoor air
quality, green roof, bike storage and EV
charging stations.




ADAPTIVE REUSE REPORT &
EVALUATIVE CRITERIA

Building or site has historic designation

N/A

Site or structure has delinquent property or
other local taxes

N/A

DEI Questionnaire

Has met required MWBE utilization for
other projects such as 950 Broadway — as is
required for ESD and other funding.
Applicant will strive to continue similar
level of utilization. Applicant is a participant
in Erie County’s Level Up Program — see
further details per attached DEI
Questionnaire.

Transit Oriented Development

Site is within 500 ft of bus lines #11 and
#25. It is 3 blocks from bus line #8

OTHER FACTORS TO CONSIDER:

Environmental/Safety Issues: Structure or
site presents significant public safety hazard
and or environmental remediation costs

N/A

Site or structure is located in a distressed
census tract

Located within census tract 169 — adjacent
to distressed census tracts.

Structure presents significant costs
associated w/ building code compliance.

N/A

DATE OF INDUCEMENT: 11/29/23

10




ADAPTIVE REUSE REPORT &
EVALUATIVE CRITERIA
Return on Investment — 1175 Delaware Capital LLC

Regional Return on Investment (ROI) numbers vary depending on the interest rate
environment, investor availability and risk associated with a project.

The National Development Council, which has experience financing projects in higher risk
urban areas across the Northeast, uses 10% - 12% as a benchmark rate of return for urban high-

risk projects.

Empire State Development financing officials when reviewing similar projects in the City of
Buffalo have used 12% as an acceptable ROI for development projects.

Adaptive Reuse Projects

Many Adaptive Reuse Projects are hampered by upfront development costs that are not typical
in new build green field development projects. These upfront costs can hinder the ability of
the projects to attract financing and provide cash flow. The upfront costs associated with site
contamination, asbestos removal, code compliance, structural deficiencies can make Adaptive
Reuse projects difficult to undertake and attract private investment and financing, particularly
in real estate markets where rental values are relatively low. Historically real estate projects in
the region are difficult to undertake, local real estate developers have indicated that the typical
ROI investors and developers seek to achieve in mixed use development projects are in the
10% - 12% range, although they can run higher for projects with significant risk.

Public Incentives Requested

e ECIDA Real Property Tax Abatement in an approximate value of $ 478,884
e Sales Tax Savings in the amount of $ 547,286
e Mortgage Tax Savings in the estimated amount of $ 91,698

ROI

1175 Delaware Capital LLC has submitted a proforma documenting the expenses and revenues
and ROI for the project.

Stated ROI for the project with ECIDA assistance is 3.7%

Stated ROI for the project without ECIDA assistance is 3.4%

11



PILOT Worksheet: Estimate of Real Property Tax Abatement Benefits*** and Percentage of

Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources

** The PILOT Worksheet will be: (i) completed by IDA Staff based upon information contained
within the Application, and (ii) provided to the Applicant for ultimate inclusion as part of this
completed Application.

PILOT Estimate Table Worksheet-1175 Delaware — Cedarland Development (Standard 7 Yr PILOT)

Dollar Value of | Estimated New | County Tax Rate/1000 | Local Tax Rate (City incl School Tax
New Assessed Value Rate/1000)
Construction | of Property
and Renovation | Subject to IDA*
Costs
$9,700,000 $ 4,825,000 5.196888 18.723386

*Apply equalization rate to value

PILOT % County Town School | Total Full Tax Net
Year Payment | PILOT PILOT PILOT | PILOT Payment Exemption
Amount | Amount Amount w/o PILOT
1 0.05 $7,425 $26,751 $0 $34,176 $115,415 $81,239
2 0.1 $8,354 $30,098 $0 $38,452 $115,415 $76,963
3 0.15 $9,283 $33,445 $0 $42,728 $115,415 $72,688
4 0.2 $10,212 | $36,791 $0 $47,003 $115,415 $68,412
5 0.25 $11,141 $40,138 $0 $51,279 $115,415 $64,136
6 0.3 $12,070 | $43,485 $0 $55,555 $115,415 $59,860
7 0.35 $12,999 | $46,832 $0 $59,831 $115,415 $55,585
TOTAL $71,483 | $257,540 $0 $329,023 | $807,907 $478,884

**%  Estimates provided are based on current property tax rates and assessment value (current as
of date of application submission) and have been calculated by IDA staff

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector Table Worksheet:

Total Project Estimated Estimated Estimated Value of | Total of Other Public
Cost Value of Value of Sales | Mortgage Tax Incentives (Tax Credits,
PILOT Tax Incentive Incentive Grants, ESD Incentives,
etc.)
$ 14,237,500 | $478,884 $547,286 $91,698 $0

Note: special district taxes are not subject to PILOT abatement

Calculate % = Est. PILOT + Est. Sales Tax+ Est. Mortgage Tax+ Other)/Total Project Costs: 7.9%

12



PILOT Worksheet: Estimate of Real Property Tax Abatement Benefits*** and Percentage of

Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources

** The PILOT Worksheet will be: (i) completed by IDA Staff based upon information contained
within the Application, and (ii) provided to the Applicant for ultimate inclusion as part of this

completed Application.
PILOT Estimate Table Worksheet-1175 Delaware — Cedarland Development EIP 7 YR Enhanced
| Dollar Value of | Estimated New County Tax Rate/1000 | Local Tax Rate (City incl School Tax
New Assessed Value Rate/1000)
Construction of Property
and Renovation | Subject to IDA*
Costs
$9,700,000 $ 4,825,000 5.196888 18.723386
* Apply equalization rate to value
PILOT % County Town School | Total Full Tax Net
Year Payment | PILOT PILOT PILOT | PILOT Payment Exemption
Amount | Amount Amount w/o PILOT
1 0.05 $7,425 $26,751 $0 $34,176 $115,415 $81,239
2 0.05 $7,425 $26,751 $0 $34,176 $115,415 $81,239
3 0.1 $8,354 $30,098 $0 $38,452 $115,415 $76,963
4 0.1 $8,354 $30,098 $0 $38,452 $115,415 $76,963
5 0.2 $10,212 $36,791 $0 $47,003 $115,415 $68,412
6 0.25 $11,141 $40,138 $0 $51,279 $115,415 $64,136
7 0.3 $12,070 | $43,485 50 $55,555 $115,415 $59,860
8 0.35 $12,999 | $46,832 $0 $59,831 $115,415 $55,585
TOTAL $77,979 | $280,944 $0 $358,924 | $923,323 $564,399

*kk

as of date of application submission) and have been calculated by IDA staff

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector Table Worksheet:

Estimates provided are based on current property tax rates and assessment value (current

Total Project Estimated Estimated Estimated Value of | Total of Other Public
Cost Value of Value of Sales | Mortgage Tax Incentives (Tax Credits,
PILOT Tax Incentive Incentive Grants, ESD Incentives,
etc.)
$ 14,237,500 | $478,884 | $547,286 $91,698 $0

Note: special district taxes are not subject to PILOT abatement

Calculate % = Est. PILOT + Est. Sales Tax+ Est. Mortgage Tax+ Other)/Total Project Costs: 7.9%

13




Erie County Industrial Development Agency

MRB Cost Benefit Calculator

Date September 22, 2023

Project Title 1175 Delaware

Project Location 1175 Delaware Ave, Buffalo, NY 14209

MRB |group

Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MRB Group

Economic Impacts

Summary of Economic Impacts over the Life of the PILOT
Project Total investment

$16,750,000 Temporary (Construction)

Direct Indirect Total
Jobs 124 8t
Earnings $6,045,589 $9,337,714
Local Spend $14,405,000 $24,597,573

Ongoing (Operations)
Aggregate over life of the PILOT

Direct Indirect Total
Jobs 1 1 2
Earnings $170,611" $196,574 | $367.185

Figure 1

3 ' _

i Net Benefits

j $12,000,000 R - = = i S —

, $10,000,000 e e — e
$8,000,000 -~ - e e
$6,000,000 e - ——— -

* $4,000,000 - —_ = -

| $2,000,000 - . _ :

] $0 |

i
-$2,000,000 S SR - . o A ) . e

i & & & & & & @ & & &

&
-
I e Benefits  wswm Costs  emmmmm Net Benefits
. P e e e~ U S R e I oy m
Net Benefits chart will always display construction through year 10, irrespective of the length of the PILOT.
Figure 2 Figure 3
i e e e————— T ——— S LS . a I
Total Jobs i Total Earnings
| ] i | e ! |
i i ; t i { i
' ! f ; b | | : ? | |
Co i ] | : ( i i
Ongoing ] : , i Ongoing !l i i ! I
i 4 h ! | i f
) P ' i i '
0 50 100 150 200 40 $2,000,000 $4,000,000 $6,000,000 $8,000,000 510,000,000 |
; w Direct w Indirect ® Direct = Indirect ;
H

© Copyright 2021 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C.

Ongoing earnings are all earnings over the life of the PILOT.

14




Fiscal Impacts

Estimated Costs of Exemptions

{Property Tax Exemption
iSales Tax Exemption
Local Sales Tax Exemption
State Sales Tax Exemption
iMortgage Recording Tax Exemption,
Local Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption
State Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption

Total Costs

State and Local Benefits

Nominal Value

$478,881
$547,286
$297.098
$250,188
$97,698 |
$30,566
861,132

$1,117,865

Nominal Value

MRB | group

Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MRB Group

Discounted Value*
$444,950
547,286
$297,098
$250,188
$91.698
$30,566
$61,132

$1,083,934

Discounted Value*

Local Benefits $9,935,861 49,892,336
{To Private Individuals 9,704,899 $9.673.457
Temporary Payroll $9,337,714 $9,337,714
Ongoing Payroll $367,785 $335,742
Other Payments to Private Individuals $0 $0
6 the Public $230962 5218879
Increase in Property Tax Revenue $119,724 $108,502
Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue $77.620 $77,620
Ongoing Jabs - Sales Tax Revenue 33,052 $2,791
Other Local Municipal Revenue $30,566 $29,967
State Benefits $504,655 $503,020
To the Public $504,655 | 503,020
Temporary Income Tax Revenue $420,197 $420,197
Ongoing Income Tax Revenue 376,523 315,108
Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue $65,364 $65,364
Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue $2570 $2.350
Total Benefits to State & Region $10,440,516 $10,395,356
Benefit to Cost Ratio
Benefit* Cost* Ratio

Local $9,892,336 $772,614 13:1

State $503,020 $311,320 2:1

Grand Total $10,395,356 $1,083,934 10:1

*Discounted at 2%

Additional Comments from IDA

© Copyright 2021 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C.

Does the IDA believe that the project can be accomplished in a timely fashion?

Yes

15




4

hy £ ¢
THE ECONOMC DEVELOMMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE OOUNTY

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Questionnaire

1. MWBE Contractors - Construction

The ECIDA encourages applicants to utilize MWBE contractors and suppliers for their
projects and when feasible, to set a goal for MWBE participation during the construction
period of the project. Below are links to the NYS and Erie County certified MWBE lists,
including contractors, that can assist you with your utilization goals:

* New York State MWBE Certified List: https:/ny.newnycontracts.com/
» Erie County MWBE Certified List: https://www3.erie.qov/eeo/mbe-wbe-resource-

list

Please provide detailed information regarding your company’s plan to utilize MWBE
contractors and suppliers for your project. Please include your project’'s MWBE
utilization goals, what process and resources you plan to use or have utilized in the past
to find and hire MWBES, a list of the specific MWBE firms used on previous projects
and/or firms you plan to use on the current project, and any history the company has of
setting and meeting MWBE goals on past projects. The company may also include
details with respect to the foregoing related to any MWBE policy and utilization goals
that its general contractor has committed to implementing for the project.

1175 Delaware Capital LLC and its affiliate, Cedarland Development LLC is an equal
opportunity employer. We value the inclusion of MWBE contractors on our projects and
are planning to utilize both contractors and suppliers for 1175 Delaware Ave. Qur
project at 950 Broadway has DRI, ESD, and HCR funding which is requiring a level of
MWBE utilization. We have started construction at 950 Broadway and have
satisfactorily hit the level of DEI utilization. We continue to strive for this level of
utilization to benefit the Buffalo community at large at 1175 Delaware Ave and all our
future projects. In addition we recognize the value in supporting not-for-profits

and charitable community-based-organizatioms. '

2. Minority & Women Employment - Current Workforce & Hiring
Practices

The ECIDA encourages the hiring of a diverse workforce, especially for jobs created
and retained as part of an ECIDA induced project. Below are some links to sites and
organizations that will be helpful in achieving a diverse workforce:

» Northland Workforce Training Center: https:/northlandwtc.org/employers/

16



* Workforce Buffalo: https://www.workforcebuffalo.org/business-services/emplover-
services

* New York State Job Bank: https://myjobsny.usnlx.com/

* Local Minority Newspapers: https://www3.erie.gov/eeo/minority-newspaper

Please provide detailed information regarding your company’s current workforce and
hiring practices as it relates to minority and women employees, including, if applicable,
the company'’s Diversity, Equity and Inclusion plan and goals, any strategic partnerships
the company has with educational and/or workforce development entities, and company
strategies regarding outreach to minorities and women with the dissemination of job
openings to the public: :

At Cedarland Development LLC, we pride ourselves on being at the forefront of DEI goals.
Cedarland Development and its affilates employee's come from a wide background and a
significant portion are both women and minorities. We are active participants of Buffalo's Level
Up program to utilize sub contractors that are registered with the program. We seek to
empower our community at large through utilizing MWBE's skilled labor pool that is availble to
us in the Buffalo MSA. ’

3. Economic Inclusion Program

The ECIDA's Economic Inclusion Program (EIP) is a voluntary “opt in” program
providing an enhanced real property tax abatement to applicants who commit to
implementing and meeting MWBE utilization and minority and women employment
goals. The mission of the EIP is to enhance the beneficial public impact of projects
receiving ECIDA assistance and to further the ECIDA’s goal of advancing opportunities
for MWBE businesses and minorities and women, in general, in the Erie County
workforce. Please note, for a company to be considered an MWBE under the EIP it
must be certified as an MWBE by New York State or Erie County.

Under the EIP, the standard ECIDA PILOT Agreement real property tax abatement
schedules are enhanced by extending both the term and abatement percentages of the
PILOT Agreement.

Please note the EIP is a voluntary opt-in program providing enhanced incentives in
exchange for meeting MWBE utilization and minority and women employment goals.
The applicant shall not engage in any unlawful discrimination against any employee or
applicant by reason of race, creed, religion, color, age, disability, national origin, sex,
gender, or any other characteristic protected by law, including, but not limited to, Title
VIl of the Civil Rights Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Age Discrimination in

17



Employment Act, the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, the New York State
Human Rights Law, and any other similar laws, rules, or regulations. Applicants may
bypass the EIP while still pursuing the ECIDA’s standard PILOT Agreement.

MPlease check the box indicating that you have read the Economic Inclusion
Program summary above and the attached FAQ document that can be found at
the end of the questionnaire.

[IPlease check the box if you are interested in tentatively opting into the

Economic Inclusion Program (nonbinding) and would like further, detailed
information on the program and process from your ECIDA business development

officer.

18



10/29/23, 2:44 PM

0.

ECIDZ

1175 Delaware

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Instructions and Insurance Requirements Document

[ Section I: Applicant Background Information

Please answer all questions. Use “None” or “Not Applicable” where necessary. Information in this application may be subject to public review

under New York State Law.

Applicant Information- Company Receiving Benefit

Project Name

Project Summary

Applicant Name
Applicant Address
Applicant Address 2
Applicant City
Applicant State
Applicant Zip
Phone

Fax

E-mail

Website

NAICS Code

Business Organization

Type of Business

Limited Liability Company

Year Established
2022
State

New York

Delaware Place

1175 Delaware is a gut rehab of an old nursing home that will result in 83 apartment units and
one commercial unit. This development will bring much needed units to a vacant and blighted
building. The building has sat vacant since Emerald South nursing home left in 2019.

1175 Delaware Capital LLC

Buffalo

New York
14209

{716) 880-7395

kevindag@cedarlanddev.com

531390

Indicate if your business is 51% or more (Check all boxes that apply)

[No} Minority Owned
[No] Woman Owned

Indicate Minority and/or Woman Owned Business Certification if applicable (Check all boxes that apply)

[No] NYS Certified
[No} Erie Country Certified

Individual Completing Application
Name Kevin Dagher

Title CEO

Address 60 Lakefront Blvd Suite 120

Address 2
City Buffalo
State New York

https:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424

19

1/20



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Zip 14216

Phone {716) 275-2766

Fax

E-Mail kevindag@cedarlanddev.com

Company Contact- Authorized Signer for Applicant

Contact is same as No

individual completing

application

Name Kevin Dagher
Title CEO

Address 60 Lakefront Blvd
Address 2 Suite 120

City Buffalo

State New York

Zip 14202

Phone (716) 880-7385
Fax

E-Mail kevindag@cedarlanddev.com
Company Counsel

Name of Steve Ricca

Attorney

Firm Name

Address 60 Lakefront Blvd Suite 120
Address 2

City Buffalo

State New York

Zip 14216

Phone (716) 698-8595

Fax

E-Mail sricca@cedarlanddev.com

Benefits Requested (select all that apply)

Exemption from Sales Tax Yes
Exemption from Mortgage Tax Yes
Exemption from Real Property Tax Yes
Tax Exempt Financing® No

* (typically for not-for-profits & small qualified manufacturers)

Applicant Business Description

Describe in detail company background, history, products and customers, Description is critical in determining eligibility. Also list all
stockholders, members, or partners with % ownership greater than 20%.

Cedartand Development Group is a rapidly growing exampte of the new generation of real estate development companies in Buffalo, New
York. Founded by Dr. Fadi Dagher, a Lebanese immigrant and former transplant surgeon, and his son Kevin Dagher, Cedarland has focused
on blighted properties on Buffalo's East and Lower West sides for the past decade. Dr. Dagher's and Kevin's shared belief in the City of
Buffalo and expertise in real estate finance has spurred Cedarland's successful urban renewal and sustainable development efforts and
passion for delivering social and economic change where the City of Buffalo needs it most. Cedarland's sound working relationships with
state and local government officials and commitment to collaboration with community stakeholders help to maximize its positive impact
in the historically disadvantaged East Side of Buffalo, the Broadway-Fillmore District in particular. We specialize in developing and
restabilizing property in the Buffalo area. A couple of projects we have completed in recent years are Creekview Apartments and The Grid.
Creekview was one of the first projects we completed, and it was a 19-unit suburban apartment building that was completed in 2019. The
Grid was a 217-Unit project that was the largest residential project to date in Buffalo. We were able to convert the site of the old Buffalo
Motor Lodge into a dynamic residential building serving young professionals and students. Dr. Dagher is the sole member of 1175
Delaware LLC which provides him with 100% ownership of the entity.

hitps:/Mww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424 2/20

20



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Estimated % of sales within Erie County 95 %
Estimated % of sales outside Erie County but within New York State 5%
Estimated % of sales outside New York State but within the U.S. 0%

0%

Estimated % of sales outside the U.S.
(*Percentage to equal 100%)

For your operations, company and proposed project what percentage of your total annual supplies, raw materials and vendor services
are purchased from firms in Erie County?
95

Describe vendors within Erie County for major purchases

It is anticipated that the construction materials and the soft costs to be incurred would be from firms based in Erie County. Our GC is
Cedarland Construction, the Architect is Elev8, the contractors for the building are locally based.

https://iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424 3/20

21



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

[ Section II: Eligibility Questionnaire - Project Description & Details

Project Location
Address of Proposed Project Facility

1175 Delaware Avenue

Town/City/Village of Project Site
Buffalo

School District of Project Site
Buffalo School District

Current Address (if different)
Current Town/City/Village of Project Site (if different)

SBL Number(s) for proposed Project
100.31-1-28.111
What are the current real estate taxes on the proposed Project Site
30,399
If amount of current taxes is not available, provide assessed value for each.
Land
$0
Building(s)
S0
If available include a copy of current tax receipt.
Are Real Property Taxes current at project location?

Yes

If no please explain
*The ECIDA has an unpaid tax policy and you will be required to certify all taxes and PILOTS are current.

Does the Applicant or any related entity currently hold fee title or have an option/contract to purchase the Project site?
Yes

If No, indicate name of present owner of the Project Site

Does Applicant or related entity have an option/contract to purchase the Project site?
Yes
Describe the present use of the proposed Project site {vacant land, existing building, etc.)

Existing building that is currently a vacant, the previous use was a commercial nursing home

Provide narrative and purpose of the proposed project {new build, renovations) square footage of existing and new construction

contemplated and/or equipment purchases. Identify specific uses occurring within the project. Describe any and all tenants and any/all

end users: {This information is critical in determining project eligibility)
Delaware Place is in the Delaware-West Ferry neighborhood directly across the street from Canisius High School. The building has been
vacant since 2019 when Emerald South nursing home moved out, it was purchased by Cedarland Development Group in late 2022. The
building is 58,000 SF and will incorporate 83 units and one commercial space. The commercial space is one office and the residential units are
split between 22 studios, 57 1-bedroom, and 4 2-bedroom units. The commercial space will be ideal for a small professional office, someone
that is requiring a small space in order to maximize their revenue through a fow cost space. The project will be a gut rehab that focuses on
New York's green initiative. It will incorporate energy efficient water usage, HVAC, appliances, and sustainable building materials. We are
focusing heavily on tenant quality of life with improved indoor air quality, green roof, bike storage, and EV charging. The studio units will fall
below the 80% AMI level, we are thrilled to be able to offer high quality housing to a wider array of income levels, Of the 84 units, we will be
furnishing 30% of them to accommodate the growing demand that we have seen for our other properties. We are excited to offer high quality
housing that emphasizes energy efficiency and tenant health in a high demand area that is.close to Delaware Park, Buffalo's CBD, and the
Buffalo Niagara Medical Campus. Since Delaware Place is centrally located within the city of Buffalo, it offers tenants limited trave! times for
both work and play. The tenants we are looking to attract will come from various employment fields and backgrounds throughout the city of
Buffalo. This will be achieved through offering competitive rental rates that are under 80% AMI for the studio units and furnishing some of the
units to attract tenants that can focus on their careers. We are aiming to appeal to a tenant that values New York's green initiatives towards
energy reduction while improving the overall tenant experience.

Municipality or Municipalities of current operations
Buffalo
Will the Proposed Project be located within a Municipality identified above?

Yes
https://mww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424 4/20

22



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Will the completion of the Project result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of
the state to another area of the state OR in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located within the

state?
No

If the Proposed Project is located in a different Municipality within New York State than that Municipality in which current operations are
being undertaken, is it expected that any of the facilities in any other Municipality will be ciosed or be subject to reduced activity?

No
(If yes, you will need to complete the Intermunicipal Move Determination section of this application)

Is the project reasonably necessary to prevent the project occupant from moving out of New York State?
No

If yes, please explain and identify out-of-state locations investigated, type of assistance offered and provide supporting documentation
available

Have you contacted or been contacted by other Local, State and/or Federal Economijc Development Agencies?
No

If yes, please indicate the Agency and nature of inquiry below

If the Project could be undertaken without Financial Assistance provided by the Agency, then provide a statement in the space provided
befow indicating why the Project should be undertaken by the Agency:

Describe the reasons why the Agency'’s financial assistance is necessary, and the effect the Project will have on the Applicant’s business or
operations. Focus on competitiveness issues, project shortfalls, etc... Your eligibility determination will be based in part on your answer
{attach additional pages if necessary)

Currently the project is less feasible as time goes on due to market conditions. The increasing interest rate environment and the construction
cost increases for the project are severely affecting the feasibility of the project. Currently the project is funded though equity and debt and
the rising interest rates are forcing concessions that are making the viability of the project come into question. Without this assistance there
will be an increased risk that the project will need to be abandoned due to the rising costs.

Please confirm by checking the box, below, if there is likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the Financial Assistance
provided by the Agency

Yes
If the Applicant is unable to obtain Financial Assistance for the Project, what will be the impact on the Applicant and Erie County?

1175 Delaware is located in a desirable location but the current market conditions of increasing interest rates and construction costs make
renovating the vacant building challenging. Without financial assistance the project could be abandoned and the property sit vacant losing
with the neighborhood losing out on 84 units that would help address the limited housing options for applicants that fall below the 80% AMI

rate.
Will project include leasing any equipment?
No
If yes, please describe equipment and lease terms.

ite Characteri

Is your project located near public transportation?
Yes
If yes describe if site is accessible by either metro or bus line (provide route number for bus lines)
The site is located with 500 feet of bus line #11 & #25. Three blocks West from bus line #8.
Has your local municipality and/or its planning board made a determination regarding the State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR)
for your project?
No

if YES indicate in the box below the date the SEQR determination was made. Also, please provide us with a copy of the approval
resolution and the related Environmental Assessment Form (EAF) if applicable.

If NO indicate in the box below the date you anticipate receiving a SEQR determination for your project. Also, please insure that the
ECIDA has been listed as an "involved agency” on the related EAF submitted to the appropriate municipality and/or planning

department.

This project qualifies as a Type H action exempt from SEQR review under 6 NY.C.R.R. § 617.5(c){2). As the Erie County Industrial
Development Agency {ECIDA) and its general counsel have acknowledged, no SEQRA review or determination is required.

Will the Project meet zoning/land use requirements at the proposed location?
Yes

Describe the present zoning/land use
N-2R- Residential

https:/imww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/ 100424 5/20

23



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
Describe required zoning/land use, if different
If a change in zoning/land use is required, please provide details/status of any request for change of zoning/land use requirements

Is the proposed Project located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is complicating the development/use
of the property?

No

If yes, please explain

Has a Phase | Environmental Assessment been prepared, or will one be prepared with respect to the proposed Project Site?

Yes
If yes, please provide a copy.

Have any other studies, or assessments been undertaken with respect to the proposed Project Site that indicate the known or
suspected presence of contamination that would complicate the site's development?

No
if yes, please provide copies of the study.

If you are purchasing new machinery and equipment, does it provide demonstrable energy efficiency benefits?

No
If yes, describe the efficiencies achieved

You may also attach additional information about the machinery and equipment at the end of the application.

Does or will the company or project occupant perform research and development activities on new products/services at the project
location?

No
If yes, include percentage of operating expenses attributed to R&D activities and provide details,

Select Project Type for all end users at project site {you may check more than one)

For purposes of the following, the term “retail sales” means {i) sales by a registered vendor under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of
New York {the “Tax Law") primarily engaged in the retail sale of tangible personal property {as defined in Section 1101{b)(4)(i} of the Tax
Law), or (ii) sales of a service to customers who personally visit the Project.

Will customers personally visit the Project site for either of the following economic activities? If yes with respect to either economic activity
indicated below, you will need to complete the Retail section of this application.

Retail Sales No Services No
Please check any and all end uses as identified below.

No Acquisition of Existing Facility No Assisted Living No Back Office

No Civic Facility (not for profit) Yes Commercial No Equipment Purchase
No Facility for the Aging No Industrial No Life Care Facility {CCRC)
Yes Market Rate Housing No Mixed Use No Multi-Tenant
No Retail No Senior Housing No Manufacturing
No Renewable Energy Yes Other

Apartments

For proposed facility please include the square footage for each of the uses outlined below

if applicant is paying for FFE for tenants, include in cost breakdown.

Cost % of Total Cost
Manufacturing/Processing square feet s 0 0%
Warehouse square feet $ 0 0%
Research & Development square feet $ 0 0%
Commercial 300 square feet $ 115,000 1%
Retail square feet S 0 0%
Office square feet $ 0 0%
Specify Other 57,700 square feet $ 16,635,000 99%
https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-201 9/print/100424 6120

24



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

If you are undertaking new construction or renovations, are you seeking LEED certification from the US Green Building Council?
No

If you answered yes to question above, what level of LEED certification do you anticipate receiving? {Check applicable box)
Standard

Provide estimate of additional construction cost as a result of < BLANK >
LEED certification you are seeking

Will project result in significant utility infrastructure cost or uses Yes

What is the estimated project timetable (provide dates)

Start date : acquisition of equipment or construction of facilities
10/31/2023

End date : Estimated completion date of project
10/31/2025

Project occupancy : estimated starting date of occupancy
11/1/2025

Capital Project Plan / Budget

Estimated costs in connection with Project
1.) Land and/or Building Acquisition
$ 2,350,000 58,000 square feet 1 acres

2.) New Building Construction
S0 square feet

3.) New Building addition(s)
$0 square feet

4.) Reconstruction/Renovation
$ 9,700,000 58,000 square feet

5.) Manufacturing Equipment

$0

6.) Infrastructure Work

$0

7.) Non-Manufacturing Equipment: {furniture, fixtures, etc.)
$ 434,700

8.) Soft Costs: (Legal, architect, engineering, etc.)
$ 4,265,300

9.) Other Cost
$0

Explain Other
Costs

Total Cost  $ 16,750,000

Construction Cost Breakdown:

Total Cost of Construction $ 9,700,000 (sum of 2, 3, 4 and 6 in Project Information, above)
Cost of materials $ 5,820,000

% sourced in Erie County 95%
Sales and Use Tax:

hitps:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424 7/20

25



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Gross amount of costs for goods and services that are subject to $ 6,254,700
State and local sales and use tax- said amount to benefit from the
Agency's sales and use tax exemption benefit

Estimated State and local Sales and Use Tax Benefit {product of $547,286
8.75% multiplied by the figure, above):

** Note that the estimate provided above will be provided to the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance. The Applicant
acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the Applicant to undertake the total amount of investment as
proposed within this Application, and that the estimate, above, represents the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency
may authorize with respect to this Application. The Agency may utilize the estimate, above, as well as the proposed total Project Costs as
contained within this Application, to determine the Financial Assistance that will be offered.

Project refinancing estimated amount, if applicable (for S0
refinancing of existing debt only)}

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date No
of this Application?

If Yes, describe particulars:

Sources of Funds for Project Costs:
Equity {excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits): $ 4,523,500
Bank Financing: $12,226,500
Tax Exempt Bond Issuance (if applicable): S0
Taxable Bond Issuance (if applicable}: S0

Public Sources {Include sum total of all state and federal grants $0
and tax credits):

Identify each state and federal grant/credit: (ie Historic Tax
Credit, New Market Tax Credit, Brownfield, Cleanup Program,
ESD, other public sources})

Total Sources of Funds for Project Costs: $16,750,000
Have you secured financing for the project? No

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit:

Amount of mortgage, if any that would be subject to mortgage recording tax:

Mortgage Amount (include sum total of 12,226,500
construction/permanent/bridge financing).

Lender Name, if Known

Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit {product of $91,698
mortgage amount as indicated above multiplied by 3/4 of 1%):

Real Property Tax Benefit:

Identify and describe if the Project will utilize a real property
tax exemption benefit other than the Agency’s PILOT benefit
{485-a, 485-b, other):

IDA PIOT Benefit: Agency staff will indicate the estimated amount of PILOT Benefit based on estimated Project Costs as contained herein and
anticipated tax rates and assessed valuation, inciuding the annual PILOT Benefit abatement amount for each year of the PILOT benefit and the
sum total of PILOT Benefit abatement amount for the term of the PILOT as depicted in the PILOT worksheet in the additional document
section.

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources: Agency staff will calculate the percentage of Project Costs financed from
Public Sector sources based upon the Sources of Funds for Project Costs as depicted above. The percentage of Project Costs financed from
public sector sources will be depicted in the PILOT worksheet in the additional document section.

Is project necessary to expand project employment?

Yes

Is project necessary to retain existing employment?

No

Will project include leasing any equipment?

No
If yes, please describe equipment and lease terms.

https.//www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424

26

8/20



10/29/23, 2:44 PM

Employment Plan {Specific to the proposed project location),

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

The Labor Market Area consists of the following six counties: Erie, Niagara, Chautauqua, Cattaraugus, Wyoming and Genessee.

By statute, Agency staff must project the number of FTE jobs that would be retained and created if the request for Financial Assistance is

granted. Agency staff will project such jobs over the TWO Year time period following Project completion. Agency staff converts PT jobs into

FTE jobs by dividing the number of PT jobs by two (2).

Current # of jobs at
proposed project
location or to be

relocated at project

location
Full time 0 0
Part time 0 0
Total 0 0

Salary and Fringe Benefits for Jobs to be Retained and Created

Job Categories # of Full Time Average Average Fringe
Employees retained Salary for Benefits for
and created Full Time Full Time

Management 0 $0 $0

Professional 0 $0 $0

Administrative 0 $o $0

Production 0 $0 $0

Independent 0 Y 50

Contractor

Other 0 $0 $0

Total 0

If financial assistance is
granted - project the
number of FT and PT

jobs to be retained

Estimate number of
residents of the Labor
Market Area in which
the project is located
that will fill the FT and
PT jobs to be created

upon 24 months (2

years) after project

completion **
0
2

If financial assistance is
granted - project the
number of FT and PT

jobs to be created upon

24 months (2 years)
after Project completion

# of Part Time Average Average Fringe
Employees retained  Salary for Benefits for
and created Part Time Part Time

1 $ 30,000 $Q

0 SO0 $0

0 $0 50

] S0 S0

o $0 50

1 $ 25,000 50

2

** Note that the Agency may utilize the foregoing employment projections, among other items, to determine the financial assistance
that will be offered by the Agency to the Applicant. The Applicant acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant
by the Applicant to retain the number of jobs and create the number of jobs with respect to the Project as set forth in this Application.

Yes By checking this box, | certify that the above information concerning the current number of jobs at the proposed project
location or to be relocated to the proposed project location is true and correct.

Employment at other locations in Erie County: (provide address and number of employees at each location):
Address
Full time 0 o] 0
Part time 0 0
Total 0 0 0

Payroll Information
Annual Payroll at Proposed Project Site upon completion

55,000

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be retained (Full Time)
0

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be retained (Part Time)
4]

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be created {Full Time)
o

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be created (Part Time)
27,500

Estimated salary range of jobs to be created

From (Full Time} O To(Full Time} O

https://ww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424

27

9/20



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
From (Part Time) 25,000 To {Part Time) 30,000

hitps://iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424 10/20
28



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

[ Section lll: Environmental Questionnaire

INSTRUCTIONS: Please complete the following questionnaire as completely as possible. If you need additional space to fully answer any
question, please attach additional page(s).

General Background Information

Address of Premises
1175 Delaware Avenue Buffalo, NY 14209

Name and Address of Owner of Premises
1175 Delaware Capital LLC 50 Lakefront Blvd Suite 103 Buffalo, NY 14202

Describe the general features of the Premises (include terrain, location of wetlands, coastlines, rivers, streams, lakes, etc.)

The premises is a 1.02 acre site in a highly developed residential area in the city of Buffalo. There are no wetlands or waterbodies at
this site, the nearest waterbody is the Scajaquada Creek located approx. 0.5 miles north of the site

Describe the Premises (including the age and date of construction of any improvements) and each of the operations or processes
carried out on or intended to be carried on at the Premises

The premises is an existing vacant 4 floor commercial building with a shed present on the site. The main building was constructed in
1973 making it 50 years old.

Describe all known former uses of the Premises

According to a December 6 2021 Phase | ESA prepared by Turnkey Environmental Restoration, LLC {Turnkeyy}, the site history is as
follows: The first known owners were Frank Tripi, the use was suspected to be commercial and residential. The current building was
constructed in 1973, From 1978 to 2109 the premise was used as a commercial health facility with past ownersfoccupants including: Tri
Del Nursing Center; St. Luke's Preshyterian Nursing Center; Presbyterian Homes of WNY; Hawthorn Health Multicare Center; Emerald
Nursing & Rehabilitation Center.

Does any person, firm or corparation other than the owner occupy the Premises or any part of it?
No

If yes, please identify them and describe their use of the property

Have there been any spills, releases or unpermitted discharges of petroleum, hazardous substances, chemicals or hazardous wastes
at or near the Premises?

Yes

If yes, describe and attach any incident reports and the results of any investigations

On Premise: Spill # 0751202 dated December 10, 2007 involved the removal of an 8,000 gallon fuel oil underground storage tank.
Three first sized holes were discovered and approx. 220 tons of petroleum impacted soil was removed and disposed. Off Premise; 1165
Delaware Ave Spill # 0908502 dated October 28, 2009 involved a mixture of hydraulic oil and water. Speedy dry was used to clean up
the sheen.

Has the Premises or any part of it ever been the subject of any enforcement action by any federal, state or local government entity, or
does the preparer of this questionnaire have knowledge of: a) any current federal, state or local enforcement actions; b) any areas of
non-compliance with any federal, state or local laws, ordinances, rules or regulations associated with operations over the past 12
months?

No

If yes, please state the results of the enforcement action {(consent order, penalties, no action, etc.) and describe the circumstances

Has there been any filing of a notice of citizen suit, or a civil complaint or other administrative or criminal procedure involving the
Premises?

No

If yes, describe in full detail

Solid And Hazardous Wastes And Hazardous Substances

Does any activity conducted or contemplated to be conducted at the premises generate, treat or dispose of any petroleum,
petroleum-related products, solid and hazardous wastes or hazardous substances?

No

If yes, provide the Premises' applicable EPA (or State) identification number

https:/Avww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424 11/20
29



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Have any federal, state or local permits been issued to the Premises for the use, generation and/or storage of solid and hazardous
wastes?

No

If yes, please provide copies of the permits.

Identify the transporter of any hazardous and/or solid wastes to or from the Premises
N/A

Identify the solid and hazardous waste disposal or treatment facilities which have received wastes from the Premises for the past two
(2) years

N/A
Does or is it contemplated that there will occur at the Premises any accumulation or storage of any hazardous wastes on-site for
disposal for longer than 90 days?

No A

If yes, please identify the substance, the quantity and describe how it is stored

Discharge Into Waterbodies

Briefly describe any current or contemplated industrial process discharges (including the approximate volume, source, type and
number of discharge points). Please provide copies of all permits for such discharges

N/A
Identify all sources of discharges of water, including discharges of waste water, process water, contact or noncontact cooling water,
and stormwater. Attach all permits relating to the same. Also identify any septic tanks on site

N/A

Is any waste discharged into or near surface water or groundwaters?
No

If yes, please describe in detail the discharge including not only the receiving water's classification, but a description of the type and
quantity of the waste

Air Pollution
Are there or is it contemplated that there will be any air emission sources that emit contaminants from the Premises?
No
If yes, describe each such source, including whether it is a stationary combustion installation, process source, exhaust or ventilation

system, incinerator or other source

Are any of the air emission sources permitted?
No

If yes, attach a copy of each permit.

Storage Tanks

List and describe all above and under ground storage tanks at the Premises used to store petroleum or gasoline products, or other
chemicals or wastes, including the contents and capacity of each tank. Please also provide copies of any registrations/permits for the
tanks

Previous 8,000 gallon fuel tank was removed in 2007 and spill was remediated at time of removal.

Have there been any leaks, spills, releases or other discharges (including loss of inventory) associated with any of these tanks?
Yes

If yes, please provide all details regarding the event, including the response taken, all analytical results or reports developed through
investigation {(whether internal or external), and the agencies which were involved

Spill # 0751202 dated December 10, 2007 involved the removal of an 8,000 gallon fuel oil underground storage tank. Three first sized
holes were discovered and approx. 220 tons of petroleum impacted soil was removed and disposed.

Polychlorinated Biphenyls ("PCB" or "PCBs") And Asbestos

Provide any records in your possession or known to you to exist concerning any on-site PCBs or PCB equipment, whether used or
stored, and whether produced as a byproduct of the manufacturing process or otherwise.

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424 12120

30



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Have there been any PCB spills, discharges or other accidents at the Premises?
No

If yes, relate all the circumstances

Do the Premises have any asbestos containing materials?

Yes

If yes, please identify the materials

12"x12" Floor Tile Black Mastic of Floor Tile in sub-basement Transite Energy Panel Door Caulking Fire Door & Elevator Doors Infill Valve
packing of gate valves Flange gaskets on pipe Sink undercoat Interior Window Bedding

https:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/ 100424 13/20

31



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

E_ Section IV: Facility Type - Single or Multi Tenant

Is this a Single Use Facility or a Multi-Tenant Facility?
Multi-Tenant Facility

Multi-Tenant Facility (to be filled out by developer)

Please explain what market conditions support the construction of this multi-tenant facility

The community is highly sought after for its proximity to the CBD, Buffalo Niagara Medical Campus, and Elmwood Village. Similar
buildings have low vacancy rates and our market research shows we're inline and below on our projected rental rates. This building will
emphasize the growing demand of green initiatives and world class amenities.

Have any tenant leases been entered into for this project?
No

If yes, please list below and provide square footage {and percent of total square footage) to be leased to tenant and NAICS Code for tenant
and nature of business

SIC or NAICS-also briefly describe type
of business, products services, % of
sales in Erie Co.

Current Address {city, state, # of sq ft and % of total to be

Tenant Nams 2ip) occupied at new projet site

*fill out table for each tenant and known future tenants

hitps:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424 14/20

32



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

|| section Vi: Retail Determination

To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency requires additional information if the proposed
Project is one where customers personally visit the Project site to undertake either a retail sale transaction or to purchase services.

Please answer the following:

Will any portion of the project (including that portion of the costs to be financed from equity or other sources) consist of facilities or
property that are or will be primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the project site?
No

if yes, complete the Retail Questionnaire Supplement below. If no, proceed to the next section.

https.//mww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424 18120

33



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

[ Section Vil: Adaptive Reuse Projects

Adaptive Reuse is the process of adapting old structures or sites for new purposes.

Are you applying for tax incentives under the Adaptive Reuse Program?
Yes

What is the age of the structure (in years)? 50

Has the structure been vacant or underutilized for a minimum of 3 years? (Underutilized is defined as a minimum of 50% of the
rentable square footage of the structure being utilized for a use for which the structure was not designed or intended)

Yes
If vacant, number of years vacant.
4
If underutilized, number of years underutilized.
0
Describe the use of the building during the time it has been underutilized:
N/A
Is the structure currently generating insignificant income? {Insignificant income is defined as income that is 50% or less than the
market rate income average for that property class)
No

If yes, please provide dollar amount of income being generated, if any

If apartments are planned in the facility, please indicate the following;
Number of Units Sq. Ft. Range Low to High Rent Range Low to High

1Bedroom 57 525- 560 $1,508- $1,538
2Bedroom 4 715-800 $1,965- $2,000
3 Bedroom - $-$

Other 2 345. 400 $910- $1,200

Does the site have historical significance?
No

If yes, please indicate historical designation

Are you applying for either State/Federal Historical Tax Credit Programs?
No

If yes, provide estimated value of tax credits

Briefly summarize the financial obstacles to development that this project faces without ECIDA or other public assistance. Please
provide the ECIDA with documentation to support the financial obstacles to development (you will be asked to provide cash flow
projections documenting costs, expenses and revenues with and without IDA and other tax credits included indicating below average
return on investment rates compared to regional industry averages)

Currently the project is less feasible as time goes on due to market conditions. The increasing interest rate environment and the
construction cost increases for the project are severely affecting the feasibility of the project. Currently the project is funded though
equity and debt and the rising interest rates are forcing concessions that are making the viability of the project come into question.
Without this assistance there will be an increased risk that the project will need to be abandoned due to the rising costs.

Briefly summarize the demonstrated support that you intend to receive from local government entities. Please provide ECIDA with
documentation of this support in the form of signed letters from these entities

Indicate other factors that you would like the Agency to consider such as: structure or site presents significant public safety hazard
and or environmental remediation costs, structure presents significant costs associated with building code compliance

N/A

Indicate census tract of project location
Census track 169

indicate how project will eliminate slum and blight

https:/imnww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424 16/20

34



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

This building has sat vacant for 4 years, the building is currently an eye sore due to the dated facade in an otherwise nice
neighborhood. The development has the potential for adding affordable housing by providing 22 studio apartments that fall below the
80% AMI threshold. Without the incentives, the building will fall into further disrepair and be even more challenging to rehab in the
future.

If project will be constructed to LEED standards indicate renewable resources utilized
N/A

https:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424 17120

35



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

[ Section VIII: Inter-Municipal Move Determination

The Agency is required by state Jaw to make a determination that, if completion of a Project benefiting from Agency Financial Assistance
results in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of the state to another area of the
state or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located within the state, Agency financial Assistance
is required to prevent the project occupant from relocating out of the state, oris rea'sonably necessary to preserve the project occupant's
competitive position in its respective industry.

Current Address
City/Town

State

Zip Code

Will the project result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the Project accupant from one area of the state to
another area of the state?

No
Will the project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Project occupant located within the state?

No

If Yes to either question, explain how, notwithstanding the aforementioned closing or activity reduction, the Agency's Financial
Assistance is required to prevent the Project from refocating out of the State, or is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project
occupant's competitive position in its respective industry:

N/A

Does this project involve relocation or consolidation of a project occupant from another municipality?
Within New York State No
Within Erie County No
If Yes to either question, please, explain
N/A
Will the project result in a relocation of an existing business operation from the City of Buffalo?

No

If yes, please explain the factors which require the project occupant to relocate out of the City of Buffalo (For example, present site is
not large encugh, or owner will not renew leases etc.)

What are some of the key requirements the project occupant is looking for in a new site? (For example, minimum sq. ft., 12 foot
ceilings, truck loading docs etc.)

N/A

If the project occupant is currently located in Erie County and will be moving to a different municipality within Erie County, has the
project occupant attempted to find a suitable location within the municipality in which it is currently located?

No

What factors have lead the project occupant to consider remaining or locating in Erie County?
N/A

If the current facility is to be abandoned, what is going to happen to the current facility that project occupant is located in?
N/A

Please provide a list of properties considered, and the reason they were not adequate. {Some examples include: site not large
enough, layout was not appropriate, did not have adequate utility service, etc.) Please include full address for locations.

N/A

https:/Mmww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-201 9/print/100424 18/20

36



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

[ Section IX: Senior Housing
IDA tax incentives may be granted to projects under the Agency’s Senior Citizen Rental Housing policy when the project consists of a multi-

family housing structure where at least 90% of the units are (or are intended to be) rented to and occupied by a person who is 60 years of
age or older.

Are you applying for tax incentives under the Senior Rental Housing policy?
No

https:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/ 100424 19/20

37



10/29/23, 2:44 PM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

[ Section X: Tax Exempt Bonds

In order to receive the benefits of a tax-exempt interest rate bond, private borrowers and their projects must be eligible under one of the
federally recognized private active bond categories (Fed Internal Rev Code IRC sections 142-144, and 1394).

Are you applying for tax exempt bonds / refinancing of bonds related to a residential rentaf facility project?
No

https./iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100424 20/20

38



Lactalis American Group, Inc
$44,526,000 total project

PRIVATE INVESTMENT INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION

ELIGIBILITY

e NAICS Section~ 3115

COMPANY INCENTIVES

s Approximately $ 1,203,247 in
sales tax savings

JOBS & ANNUAL PAYROLL

s Current Jobs: 375 FT, 1 PT
e Annual Payroll: $ 22,277,956
¢ Projected new jobs:27 FT

& Est. salary/yr. of jobs created:
$47,515

e Projected retained jobs: : 375 FT, 1
PT

s Est. salary/yr. of FT jobs retained:
$77,112

e Total jobs after project completion:

352

s Construction Jobs: 195

PROJECTED COMMUNITY
BENEFITS*

¢ Term: 2 yrs. from project
completion

e NET Community Benefits:
$397,007,342

¢ Spillover Jobs: 1722

Total Payroll: $374,424,843

INCENTIVE COST/
COMMUNITY BENEFIT RATIO

. (discounted at 2%)*
Incentives: $1,203,247
Community Benefit: $382,712,974

Cost: Benefit Ratio
. 1:318

Project Title: Plant Modemization & Infrastructure Upgrades — Western NY

Project Address 2375 South Park Ave, Buffalo, NY 14xxx

(City of Buffalo School District)

Agency Request

A sales tax abatement in connection with the modernization and revitalization of the Buffalo,
NY manufacturing facility.

Building Addition $ 1,075,000
Reconstruction / Renovation $19,002,212
Manufacturing Equipment $21,607,000
Infrastructure $ 2,841,788
Total Project Cost $44,526,000
85% $37,847,100

Company Description

Lactalis American Group, Inc is a subsidiary of Group Lactalis —a global dairy company
that owns and operates dairy manufacturing plants around the world including 11
manufacturing plants operating in the U.S. Other U.S. locations include: CA, AZ, ID, W1,
VT and NH. Lactalis Buffalo employs 684 employees - 376 within the manufacturing plant.

More than 700MM pounds of milk is collected at the Buffalo plant each year for dairy
product production — supporting hundreds of farms (97% of all milk processed at Lactalis
Buffalo comes from NYS dairy farms). The plant produces Galbani Ricotta and mozzarella
cheeses, along with Whey Powder, Galbani Provolone and President Cut-and-Wrap Brie.
The site consists of two distinct plants: the cheese plant and the whey plant. The cheese
plant houses the equipment to produce mozzarella, provolone, brie and ricotta cheese. A
key by-product of the cheese making process — why, is then pumped from the cheese plant
to the whey plant. The whey plant primarily consists of the evaporator and they dryer
equipment responsible for processing the whey liquid into whey powder

Project Description

The Lactalis Buffalo manufacturing plant’s future economic viability needs a production
capacity increase of 30%. This requires key infrastructure upgrades for the installation of new
mozzarella and ricotta cheese production equipment, a new building addition for the whey
evaporator and dryer equipment and regulatory plant-wide infrastructure upgrades. Most of
the manufacturing facilities and processing equipment within the Buffalo plant dates back to
the 1970s. The Buffalo production facility faces mounting pressures to maintain operations of
the plant while competing with other Lactalis manufacturing facilities within the US.

* Cost Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MRB Group

39



Economic Impact: Inform Analytics Cost-Benefit Analysis

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency uses the Cost Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MRB Group to assess the
economic impact of a project applying for incentives. A Cost-Benefit Analysis is required by Section 859-a (5)(b) of General

Municipal Law. For the complete Cost Benefit Analysis — please see the attached MRB Cost Benefit Calculator.

Cost: Incentives
Tax Exemption Amount
Property 0
£ | sales $1,203,247
S | Mortgage Recording 0
Total $1,203,247
Discounted at 2% $1,203,247

Benefit: Projected Community Benefit*

Region Recipient | Revenue Type $ Amount **
Erie Individuals | Payroll Construction S 28,572,681
County Payroll Permanent $345,852,163
o Public Property Taxes S 0
@ Sales Taxes S 3,112,406
Z Other Muni Revenue (NFTA) S 0
@ | New York | Public Income Taxes $ 16,849,118
State Sales Taxes S 2,620,974
Total Benefits to EC + NYS*** $397,007,342
Discounted at 2% $382,712,974

& ok 3k

* Cost Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MRB Group **includes direct & indirect $ over project period may not sum to total due to rounding

Discounted Cost $ 1,203,247
Discounted Benefit $382,712,974
Ratio 1:318

Conclusion: The Cost Benefit for this project is: 318:1. For every $1 in costs (incentives), this project provides $318 in
benefits (payroll & tax revenue). Note: For Erie County, every $1 in costs (incentives) provides $557 in benefits to
the community.

40



Draft Recapture Material Terms

Condition Term Recapture Provision

Total Investment At project completion Investment amount equal to or greater than 85% of
project amount.

Total project amount = $44,526,000

85% = $37,847,100

Employment 2 years after project completion | Maintain Base = 375 FTE

Create 85% of Projected

Projected =27 FTE

85%= 22 FTE

Recapture Employment =397 FTE

Local Labor Construction period Adherence to policy including
quarterly reporting

Pay Equity 2 years after project completion | Adherence to Policy

Unpaid Tax 2 years after project completion | Adherence to Policy

Recapture Period 2 years after project completion | Recapture of state and local sales taxes

Recapture applies to: State and Local Sales Taxes

Recapture

Pursuant to New York State General Municipal Law, the agency shall modify, recover, recapture or terminate any financial assistance
taken by the company that is in violation of the GML.

At completion of the project company must certify i) total investment amount is equal to or greater than 85% of the anticipated project
amount; ii) company has maintained 375 FTE jobs and created 27 FTE jobs, iii) confirm adherence to local labor policy during
construction and iv) its adherence to unpaid tax/pay equity policies for recapture term.

Project ECIDA History
e 10/25/23: Public hearing held.

e 11/29/23: Inducement Resolution presented to Board of Directors adopting a Negative Declaration in accordance with
SEQRA

* 11/29/23: Lease/Leaseback Inducement Resolution presented to the Board of Directors

Company History

*  1/26/22: property and sales tax incentives associated with $1.44 M construction and renovation project (office space).
Project status = inactive / Lactalis will not move forward with project and no ECIDA benefits were taken.

¢ 10/13/99: property and sales tax incentives associated with $7.76 M construction project: 86K sq ft cooler/warehouse,
91K sq ft parking lot, renovations to an existing facility and the purchase of machinery & equipment.

*  8/12/98: property & sales tax incentives associated with $1.8 M construction project: 7K sq ft addition to an admin bldg.

*  2/12/97: property & sales tax incentives associated with $2.83 M construction project: 16K sq ft addition existing bldg.

41



EVALUATIVE CRITERIA
AGRICULTURAL, FOOD PROCESSING
Project: Lactalis / Plant Modernization - WNY

Evaluative Criteria

Notes

Wage Rates (above median wage for
area)

Average salaries for existing jobs: $77,112 and for created |
jobs: $47,515

Regional Wealth Creation (% of
sales/customers outside area)

97% of sales are outside Erie County (breakdown: 6%
elsewhere in NYS, 89% outside NYS but in the U.S. and
2% outside the U.S.)

In Region Purchases (% of purchases
from local growers)

15% of purchases are in region. Major purchases include:
raw materials (milk = company’s largest expense), various
local service providers and contractors for capital
investment projects, cold storage facilities in Erie County
and National Traffic Safety that manages logistics
invoices and payments.

Research & Development Activities

R&D accounts for 7% — 10% of total operating expenses.

Investments in Energy Efficiency

The modernization work includes the installation of new
heating and cooling units that will be of higher efficiency.
Energy efficiencies will be further improved with
additional insulation, better system design, improved
SEER ratings, etc. The installation of new equipment
(whey plant) replaces the energy source resulting in a
reduction of carbon emissions.

Locational Land Use Factors,
Proximity to Supporting Local
Agricultural Production

Annually, this plant uses 700MM pounds of milk for dairy
product production — 97% of raw milk comes from NYS
dairy farmers.

LEED/Renewable Resources

N/A

Retention/Flight Risk Risk = Lactalis choosing to expand at an existing facility
in the U.S. or build new elsewhere.
MBE/WBE Utilization See attached DEI Questionnaire that includes 1) MWBE

Contractor goals for construction and 2) current workforce
& hiring practices related to Diversity Equity & Inclusion

Workforce Access — Proximity to
Public Transportation

Project site is located along a major bus route and
serviced by NFTA bus route #s: 14, 16, 42

DATE OF INDUCEMENT: November 29, 2023

42



Erie County Industrial Development Agency
MRB Cost Benefit Calculator

Date October 16, 2023
Project Title

Project Location 2375 South Park Ave,, Buffalo, NY 14220

MRB l group

Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MR8 Group

Plant Modernization & Infrastructure Upgrades — Western NY

Economic Impacts

Summary of Economic Impacts over the Life of the PILOT
Project Total Investment

$44,526,000 Temporary {Construction)
Direct Indirect Total
Jobs — LL
Earnings 4187 I $16T59542 | 328572681
Local Spend $44,526,000 $31,524,243 $76,050,243
Ongeing (Operations)
Aggregate over life of the PILOT
Direct: Indirect Total
Jobs 402 e 7{71‘54,‘5 o 194]
Earnings $89,318810 | $256,535,353 | $34585% 763
Figure 1
Net Benefits
! $140,000,000 — e e e ——
! $120,000,000 --- = -~ e it e T — e
" $100,000,000 - - - - —
$80,000,000 - e
$60,000,000 e - - -
$40,000,000 - - - == —_
$20,000,000 - e .
$0
-$20,000,000 T e BT e o I i e e
& & @ & XU & & & & A& &
&
(_‘O
weww Benefits  mwww Costs e Net Benefits i

|
{

Net Benefits chart will always display construction through year 10, irrespective of the length of the PILOT.

Figure 2

Total Jobs

i
Temporary -

|
s !
E | 1
; { l § |
ongoine (I ’

i
1000 1500 2000

m Direct m Indirect

!
i
i
i
i

|
?

500 2500

o

i
l

© Copyright 2021 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C.

Figure 3

Total Earnings

|
!
s

! ' i
i i i

$200,000,000 $300,000,000

Temporary

{ !
i |
i |
]
I
! |!

!
!
;
Ongoing !
I

$100,000,000 $400,000,000

® Direct ® iIndirect

Ongoing earnings are all earnings over the life of the PILOT.

43




Fiscal Impacts

Estimated Costs of Exemptions

es laxt 1001 %o

Local Sales Tax Exemption
State Sales Tax Exemption

IMartgage Recording Tax Exemption
Local Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption
State Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption

Total Costs.

State and Local Benefits

‘Local Benefits

§To Private Individuals
Temporary Payroll
QOngoing Payroll
Other Payments to Private Individuals
In&éa?é?ﬁ Property Tax Revenue
Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Other Local Municipal Revenue

State Benefits

{To the Public
Temporary Income Tax Revenue
Ongoing Income Tax Revenue
Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue
Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue

Total Benefits to State & Region
Benefit to Cost Ratio

Local
State

‘Grand Total
*Discounted at 2%

Nominal Value

$0|
$1,203.247 |
$653,191
$550056
' 301
$0
S0

$1,203,247

Nominal Vaiue

MRB | group

Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MRB Group

Discounted Value*
$0

-$1.203247
$653,191

$1,203,247

Discounted Value*
$363,943,909

o $360,943,565
345,852,763 $332,370,885
30 10
13,112,407 | $3.000.343
30 30
$237,510 237,510
82,874,896 $2762,833
%0 $0
$19,470,092 $18,769,065
$19.470,092 $18,769,065
$1,285.771 $1,285,771
$715563,347 14,956,690
$200,009 $200,009
$£2.420,965 $2,326,596
$397,007,342 $382,712,974
Benefit* Cost* Ratio
$363,943,909 $653,191 557:1
$18,769,065 $550,056 3411
$382,712,974 $1,203,247 318:1

Additional Comments from IDA

Does the IDA believe that the project can be accomplished in a timely fashion?

© Copyright 2021 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C.

Yes

44




N
&mnum

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Questionnaire

1. MWBE Contractors - Construction

The ECIDA encourages applicants to utilize MWBE contractors and suppliers for their
projects and when feasible, to set a goal for MWBE participation during the construction
period of the project. Below are links to the NYS and Erie County certified MWBE lists,
including contractors, that can assist you with your utilization goals:

* New York State MWBE Certified List: https://ny.newnycontracts.com/
o Erie County MWBE Certified List: hitps://www3.erie.gov/eeo/mbe-wbe-resource-
list

Please provide detailed information regarding your company's plan to utilize MWBE
contractors and suppliers for your project. Please include your project's MWBE °
utilization goals, what process and resources you plan to use or have utilized in the past
to find and hire MWBEs, a list of the specific MWBE firms used on previous projects
and/or firms you plan to use on the current project, and any history the company has of
setting and meeting MWBE goals on past projects. The company may also include
details with respect to the foregoing related to any MWBE policy and utilization goals
that its general contractor has committed to implementing for the project.

SEE NIV AAE

2. Minority & Women Employment - Current Workforce & Hiring

Practices

The ECIDA encourages the hiring of a diverse workforce, especially for jobs created
and retained as part of an ECIDA induced project. Below are some links to sites and
organizations that will be helpful in achieving a diverse workforce:

» Northland Workforce Training Center: hitps://northlandwtc.org/employers/

45



s Workforce Buffalo: hitps://www.workforcebuffalo.org/business-services/employer-
services

¢ New York State Job Bank: https://myjobsny.usnix.com/

o Local Minority Newspapers: https://www3.erie.gov/eeo/minority-newspaper

Please provide detailed information regarding your company’s current workforce and
hiring practices as it relates to minority and women employees, including, if applicable,
the company’s Diversity, Equity and Inclusion plan and goals, any strategic partnerships
the company has with educational and/or workforce development entities, and company
strategies regarding outreach to minorities and women with the dissemination of job
openings to the public: '

S££ 7T T LT E

3. Economic Inclusion Program

The ECIDA's Economic Inclusion Program (EIP}is a voluntary “opt in” program
providing an enhanced real property tax abatement to applicants who commit to
implementing and meeting MWBE utilization and minority and women employment
goals. The mission of the EIP is to enhance the beneficial public impact of projects
receiving ECIDA assistance and to further the ECIDA’s goal of advancing opportunities
for MWBE businesses and minorities and women, in general, in the Erie County
workforce. Please note, for a company to be considered an MWBE under the EIP it
must be certified as an MWBE by New York State or Erie County.

Under the EIP, the standard ECIDA PILOT Agreement real property tax abatement
schedules are enhanced by extending both the term and abatement percentages of the

PILOT Agreement.

Please note the EIP is a voluntary opt-in program providing enhanced incentives in
exchange for meeting MWBE utilization and minority and women employment goals.
The applicant shall not engage in any unlawful discrimination against any employee or
applicant by reason of race, creed, religion, color, age, disability, national origin, sex,
gender, or any other characteristic protected by law, including, but not limited to, Title
Vil of the Civil Rights Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Age Discrimination in

46



Employment Act, the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, the New York State
Human Rights Law, and any other similar laws, rules, or regulations. Applicants may
bypass the EIP while still pursuing the ECIDA’s standard PILOT Agreement.

MXPpiease check the box indicating that you have read the Economic Inclusion
Program summary above and the attached FAQ document that can be found at
the end of the questionnaire.

Please check the box if you are interested in tentatively opting into the

Economic Inclusion Program (nonbinding) and would like further, detailed
information on the program and process from your ECIDA business development
officer.

47



Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Questionnaire - Attachment

1. MWBE Contractors - Construction

The applicant's internals practices include use of MBE/WBE companies when available.
Their Project managers and Purchasing team are required to utilize the NYS MBE/WBE
maintained list of certified contractors prior to publishing jobs for bid. This helps ensure
certified companies are included in the RFP and bid process. They also require via contract
terms and conditions that all of our contractors in NYS engage MBE/WBE to work on their
projects to the maximum extent possible. Up until recently, and yet to be finalized for the
proposed project, a prime contractor for their previous project had a policy that required all of
their local (Erie County) contracts include MWBE suppliers or subcontractors for
approximately 9%-11% of its contract prices. This has been a standard practice for this
contractor for a number of years. The applicant is dedicated to building a diverse, inclusive,
and authentic workplace, and they make every effort to engage with suppliers and vendors
that make conscious efforts to promote the same.

Lactalis America Group’s Diversity, Equity & Inclusion company statement states:

We believe each and every individual within the organization provides value. When
we encourage and include the voices of all diverse backgrounds and perspectives,
we open doors to unforeseen growth and allow individuals to bring their full authentic
sleeves to work. In order to celebrate the uniqueness of our people and the
communities in which we operate, we are committed to cultivating a fair and inclusive
workplace that fosters real belonging for all.

To that end, the applicant has a signed partnership agreement with Circa (also known as
DiversityJobs), a talent acquisition company committed to promoting the applicant's open
positions to minority and underrepresented groups. All job postings include diversity
language inviting candidates from all different backgrounds, cultures, and experiences, to
apply and become part of the applicant’s diverse, inclusive, and authentic workplace.
Furthermore, the applicant encourages candidates with past experiences that do not
perfectly align with every qualification in the job posting to still apply for the position and
share their story, passion and expertise on why they would be the perfect candidate for the
job. Finally, the Applicant’s parent company has recently established a USA DE&I Council
that will establish and oversee DE&I programs across all plants in the U.S.

48



LACTALIS
usa

‘ Distribution:

| | | |
n Procedure No.
[ Human Resources PAGE 1 OF 2
s EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
Procedural Date Effective: Revision Date:
Manual
01/01/2004 01/01/2022
_—
1.0 Purpose
TABLE OF 2.0 Scope and Application
CONTENTS 3.0 Responsibility
4.0 Policy
‘!?I{RPOSE 1.1 To establish a policy and guidelines regarding the Equal Employment Opportunity (EEQ) Policy
;e which has been designed to:

; a. Ensure continued administration of all Human Resources policies and practices for all
employees and applicants without regard to discrimination based on race, religion, color, sex,
national origin, marital status, disability, genetic information or veteran status and accordance
with applicable policies pertaining to age or any other prohibited discrimination prohibited by
EEO or Department of Labor (DOL.) state or local laws.

b. Promote employee understanding and acceptance of the principle of affirmative action, a
applicable in assuring the provisions of equal employment opportunities.
¢. Place positive emphasis on employment and development of women and minority group
employees.
ﬂcpo._ffﬁfgn 2.1 This policy applies to all employees of the Company. For purposes of this policy, any reference to th
20 “Company” will mean the specific U.S. subsidiary that employs you.
RESPONSIBILITY | 3 1 The Vice President of Human Resources is responsible for the content and maintenance of this
3.0 document.
POLICY 41  Policy

4.0
The Company has a continuing policy to ensure that equal employment opportunities are extended
to all pérsons without regard to race, color, religion, gender, national origin, age disability, sexual
orientation or veteran status. This policy applies to ail terms and conditions of employment,
including but not limited to hiring, selection, promotion, layoff, and compensation.
The Company expressly prohibits and will not tolerate any form of unlawful employee discrimination
or harassment based upon race, color, religion, gender, national origin, age, disability, sexual
orientation, or veteran status.
Although the Company is committed to the above actions through federal, state and local laws, we
would like to make clear to all potential and existing employees of the Company our fundamental
support for this statement. We fully intend to continue fostering a work environment that values
employees as individuals, rewards performance and holds employees accountable for their actions.

49




' Distribution: B
LACTALIS |
USA
|
Procedure No. )
R PAGE 2 OF 2
e EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
| Procedural Date Effective: Revision Date:
Manual
01/01/2004 01/01/2022
4 POLICY
4.0 4.2 To implement these policies our Company will continue to:
4 1. Recruit, hire, train, and promote persons in all job classifications without regard to race, color,
religion, sex, national origin, marital status, genetic information, age, disability, or veteran status.
The Company does not discriminate on the basis of national origin or citizenship status as
provided under the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.

2. Make employment decisions 50 as to further the principle of equal employment opportunity.

3. Ensure the promotional decisions are in accordance with the principles of equal employment
opportunity by imposing only valid requirements for promotional opportunities.

4. Ensure that all personnel actions {including but not limited to compensation, benefits, transfers,
fayoffs, Company sponsored training education, tuition assistance, social and recreational
programs) are administered without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age,
disability, or veteran status.

The V.P. of Human Resources for the Company is the EEO compliance officer. This person is

5 responsible for the compliance with state and federal equal opportunity laws and for Implementing
B the Affirmative Action Program to the extent applicable. This responsibility includes equal
_ employment practices, monitoring and internal reporting. Employees believing they have not been
(4 treated in accordance with this policy are encouraged to contact the Human Resources Department.
Name Reviewed By: Approved By: Authorized By:
{Divisional General [Divisional Chief [Company Name]
Title Counsel] Executive Officer] Board of Directors by written consent on
[Date]
[To be adopted by Board if this Is a new
policy]
Signature
Date

50




PUBLIC HEARING SCRIPT

Lactalis American Group, Inc. and/or
Individual(s) or Affiliate(s),
Subsidiary(ies), or Entity(ies) formed or
to be formed on its behalf Project

Public Hearing to be held on October 25, 2023 at 9:00 a.m.,
at the Erie County Industrial Development Agency’s offices located at 95 Perry Street,
Suite 403, Buffalo, NY 14203

ATTENDANCE:

Don Heins - Lactalis American Group, Inc.

Jeff McGiveron — Lactalis American Group, Inc.
Brian Krygier — ECIDA

X1 1. WELCOME: Call to Order and Identity of Hearing Officer.

Hearing Officer: Welcome. This public hearing is now open; it is 9:00 a.m. My name is
Grant Lesswing. I am the Director of Business Development of the Erie
County Industrial Development Agency, and I have been designated by
the Agency to be the hearing officer to conduct this public hearing. This
public hearing is being live-streamed and made accessible on the
Agency’s website at www.ecidany.com.

2. PURPOSE: Purpose of the Hearing.

Hearing Officer. We are here to hold the public hearing on the Lactalis American Group,
Inc. and/or Individual(s) or Affiliate(s), Subsidiary(ies), or Entity(ies)
formed or to be formed on its behalf project. The transcript of this hearing
will be reviewed and considered by the Agency in determination of this
project. Notice of this hearing appeared in The Buffalo News on Friday,
October, 13, 2023.

3. PROJECT SUMMARY: Description of Project and Contemplated Agency Benefits.

Hearing Officer: The proposed project consists of: (i) the upgrading of the 60,000+/- sq. ft.
production areas for Galbani Ricotta and Mozzarella Cheeses as well as
upgrades to the pasteurization equipment and packaging equipment to
reliably handle the increased input, along with Whey Powder, Galbani
Provolone and President Cut-and-Wrap Brie processing production lines,
installation of new mozzarella and ricotta cheese production equipment, a
new 6,000+/- sq. ft. building addition for the whey evaporator and dryer
equipment, as well as plant wide infrastructure upgrades such as repairing,
restoring and upgrading the existing plant infrastructure including the
replacement of an end-of-life milk silo, constructing a receiving bay
catwalk for improved worker safety, repair and replacement of failing roof

51



system, repair to aging electrical infrastructure (the “Improvements™), and
(i1) the acquisition by the Company in and around the Improvements of
certain items of machinery, equipment and other tangible personal
property (the “Equipment”; and collectively with the Improvements, the
“Facility”). The Facility will be initially operated and/or managed by the
Company.

The proposed financial assistance contemplated by the Agency includes
New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits (in
compliance with Agency's uniform tax exemption policy).

Xl 4. FORMAT OF HEARING: Review rules and manner in which the hearing will proceed.

Hearing Officer. All those in attendance are required to register by signing the sign-in sheet
at the front of the room; you will not be permitted to speak unless you
have registered. Everyone who has registered will be given an opportunity
to make statements and/or comments on the Project.

If you have a written statement or comment to submit for the record, you
may leave it at this public hearing, submit it on the Agency’s website or
deliver it to the Agency at 95 Perry Street, Suite 403, Buffalo, New York
14203. The comment period closes on November 28, 2023. There are no
limitations on written statements or comments.

X 5. PUBLIC COMMENT: Hearing Officer gives the Public an opportunity to speak.

Hearing Officer: If anyone is interested in making a statement or comment, please raise
your hand, state your name and address; if you are representing a
company, please identify the company. [ request that speakers keep
statements and/or comments to 5 minutes, and if possible, 3 minutes.

Good morning my name is Don Heins, Manager of US Communications for Lactalis. | am Jeff McGiveron,
Tax director for Lactalis. Don Hines - | will be making a statement on behalf of Lactalis. Lactalis
American Group's South Park Dairy processing facility has continued to be a pillar of the community
since we acquired the plant in the early 1990's, which was originally owned by the Russo family. The
plant is a subsidiary of Groupe Lactalis, which is a global dairy company that owns and operates dairy
manufacturing plants in over 50 countries, including 11 manufacturing facilities operating in the United
State. Our Buffalo plant on South Park Avenue employs 376 workers with a combined total of 616
employees at both the plant and our corporate headquarters on South Park Avenue. An additional 59
employees work at our corporate office on Seneca Street. Lactalis has a total of 675 employees based in
Buffalo, NY. The Buffalo manufacturing plant produces mozzarella, ricotta, provolone, brie cut and wrap,
and whey. On average, this plant processes 750 million Ibs. of raw milk annually from 230 dairy farms
located throughout Western NY. This translates into more than $145 Million in annual milk purchases
from Western NY dairy farms. 97% of raw milk used in this plant is produced in New York State.

Lactalis proposes to modernize and revitalize the plant to meet market demands over the next several
years that will result in 27 net new jobs, with an estimated investment of $44 Million.

There are mounting pressures to ensure that the South Park manufacturing facility remains
competitive within the Lactalis group of companies and in the region. First, the post-Covid

52



economic conditions within the dairy sector are challenging given supply chain issues, recent
sharp rises in interest rates, decreased access to capital, and the increase in the cost of goods.
These conditions will invariably put further pressures on the aging Buffalo plants whose
building structures and production equipment date back to the 1970's.  Second, increased
competition in the region will also create pricing pressures for locally sourced raw milk, and
labor talent. Should the attempts to modernize and revitalize the plant fail to come to fruition,
the South Park site risks scaling down production volumes, and production capacity could either
be absorbed into one of the Lactalis' other plants located outside the state, or the possible
construction of an entirely new facility at a different location.

This project is being approached in a phased manner with the objective to retain production
operations at the Buffalo plant, while allowing Lactalis to investigate potential alternatives
should the economic realities in future years prevent the project's completion.

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) financial assistance has the potential
of reducing the project's timeline by up to 18 months. This would result in the plant increasing
its targeted 30% production capacity sooner. Lactalis forecasts that, at a minimum, there would
be 27 new full-time positions within 24 months following the project's completion, all of which
will be local hires that will add to the current 376 employees at the facility. Presently, the
proposed project is the initial phase of an overall capacity and efficiency improvement initiative
at the Buffalo plant. The total cost of total project phases is estimated to be over $100 Million.
All planning for subsequent phases critically depends on the success of these initial phases and
key learnings gained from the completion of the proposed project.” We would like to thank the
ECIDA for considering our request for financial assistance to help make our modernization
project a success.

Thank you.

6. ADJOURNMENT:

As there were no further statements and/or comments, the Hearing Officer closed the
public hearing at 9:07 a.m.

53



at the Erie County Industrial Development Agency’s offices located at 95 Perry Street,

Project Location:

SIGN IN SHEET
PUBLIC HEARING

October 25, 2023, at 9:00 a.m.

Suite 403, Buffalo, NY 14203, regarding:

Lactalis American Group, Inc. and/or Individual(s) or Affiliate(s),

Subsidiary(ies), or Entity(ies) formed or to be formed on its behalf

2375 South Park Avenue, Buffalo, New York 14220

95 Perry Street, Suite 403
Buffalo, New York 14203

X box to
speak/
Name Company and/or Address comment
Don Heins, Lactalis American Group, Inc.
2375 South Park Avenue X
Buffalo, New York 14220
Jeff McGiveron Lactalis American Group, Inc.
2375 South Park Avenue
Buffalo, New York 14220
Brian Krygier ECIDA

54




10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Tl SCONOAC CRANGINT CONOANION FOR, Il COUMTY

Plant Modernization - Western NY

Instructions and Insurance Requirements Document

I Section I: Applicant Background Information

Please answer all questions. Use “None” or “Not Applicable” where necessary. Information in this application may be subject to public review
under New York State Law.

Applicant Information- Company, Receiving Benefit
Project Name Plant Modernization & Infrastructure Upgrades- Western NY

Project Summary The purpose of the multi-year multi-phase plant project is to modernize and revitalize the
Applicant's Buffalo, NY manufacturing facility. Much of the building structure and equipment in
the plant date back to the 1970's. Some building components, such as load bearing columns,
roofs, etc. have come into disrepair, while the aging manufacturing equipment, such as the
whey plant evaporator and dryer equipment cannot keep up with current capacity demands.
The plant's future economic viability needs a production capacity increase of 30%, which
requires the construction of an entirely new whey plant building, and infrastructure upgrades
for the installation of new mozzarella and ricotta cheese production equipment, including
required regulatory plant wide infrastructure upgrades.

Applicant Name Lactalis American Group, Inc.
Applicant Address 2375 South Park Avenue
Applicant Address 2

Applicant City Buffalo

Applicant State New York

Applicant Zip 14220

Phone (647) 784-5567

Fax

E-mail jim.kourtis@ca.lactalis.com
Website LactalisAmericanGroup.com
NAICS Code 3115

Business Organization
Type of Business
Corporation

Year Established
1980

State

Delaware

Indicate if your business is 51% or more (Check all boxes that apply)

https../iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100429 1/20

55



10/2/23, 915 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

[No] Minority Owned
[No] Woman Owned
Indicate Minority and/or Woman Owned Business Certification if applicable {Check all boxes that apply)

[No] NYS Certified
[No] Erie Country Certified

Individual Completing Application

Name Jim Kourtis

Title Government Funding & Industry Relations,
North America

Address 2376 South Park Avenue

Address 2

City Buffalo

State New York

Zip 14220

Phone (647) 784-5567

Fax

E-Mail lim.KOURTIS@ca.lactalis.com

Company Contact- Authorized Signer for Applicant

Contact is same as No

individual completing

application

Name Jeffrey McGiveron

Title Director- Tax & Insurance
Address 2376 South Park Avenue
Address 2

City Buffalo

State New York

Zip 14220

Phone (716) 823-6262

Fax

E-Mail Jeffrey.mcgiveron@us.lactalis.com

Company Counsel

Name of Brendan Lillis

Attorney

Firm Name N/A {in-house counsel)
Address 2376 South Park Avenue
Address 2

City Buffalo

State New York

Zip 14220

Phone (716) 823-6262

Fax (716) 823-6454

htips:.//iwww.ecidany.com/appftax-incentive-application-2019/print/100429 2/20

56



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

E-Mail brendan.lillis@us.lactalis.com

Benefits Requested (select all that apply)

Exemption from Sales Tax
Exemption from Mortgage Tax
Exemption from Real Property Tax

Tax Exempt Financing*

* (typically for not-for-profits & small qualified manufacturers)

Applicant Business Description

Yes

No

No

No

Describe in detail company background, history, products and customers. Description is critical in determining eligibility. Also list all
stockholders, members, or partners with % ownership greater than 20%.

The Applicant is a subsidiary of Group Lactalis, which is a global dairy company that owns and operates dairy manufacturing plants around
the world, including 11 manufacturing plants operating in the U.S. The Buffalo, NY location is one of the Applicant's and its affiliated 11
manufacturing plants. This manufacturing plant employs 376 manufacturing employees for a combined workforce of more than 684
employees in Buffalo, NY, which includes 184 employed at the headquarters site. The Buffalo manufacturing plant produces mozzarella,
ricotta, provolone, brie, and whey. On average this plant processes 750 million Ibs of raw milk annually from 230 dairy farms located
throughout WNY. This translates into more than $145MM in annual milk purchases from WNY dairy farms. 97% of raw milk used in this
plant is produced in NYS. Applicant is 100% owned by LAG Holding, Inc., a subsidiary of Group Lactalis.

Estimated % of sales within Erie County

3%

Estimated % of sales outside Erie County but within New York State 6 %

Estimated % of sales outside New York State but within the U.S.

Estimated % of sales outside the U.S.
(*Percentage to equal 100%)

89 %
2%

For your operations, company and proposed project what percentage of your total annual supplies, raw materials and vendor services

are purchased from firms in Erie County?

15

Describe vendors within Erie County for major purchases

Lactalis America Group that belongs to a global family of companies, and having a national footprint, purchases goods and services locally,
nationally and at a global level to leverage its buying power and gain economies of scale. As of the beginning of 2022, the company's
annual operating expenses from this Buffalo location is estimated at over $750MM, outside of payroll expenses for more than 675
employees. S750MM is spent within Erie County. Outside of payroll expense, the company's largest expense is mitk, which is sourced from
around 40 dairy farmers in WNY. The company uses a variety of local service providers and contractors for their capital investment
projects. They have cold storage facilities in Erie County where they spend more than $650K annually. A major service provider in WNY is
National Traffic Safety, which is used to manage their logistics invoices and payments. This vendor processes more than $120MM in freight

invoices annually.

https:/fiwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100429

3/20
57



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

[ Section II: Eligibility Questionnaire - Project Description & Details

Project Location
Address of Proposed Project Facility :
2375 South Park Avenue

Town/City/Village of Project Site
Buffalo

School District of Praject Site
Buffalo

Current Address (if different)
Current Town/City/Village of Project Site {if different)

SBL Number(s) for proposed Project
133.78-3-2.113, 133.78-3-8, 133.78-3-10, 133.78-3-11, 133.78-3-12

What are the current real estate taxes on the proposed Project Site
$100,319.92

If amount of current taxes is not available, provide assessed value for each.

Land
$0
Building(s)
S0
If available include a copy of current tax receipt.
Are Real Property Taxes current at project location?

Yes

if no please explain

*The ECIDA has an unpaid tax policy and you will be required to certify all taxes and PILOTS are current.

Does the Applicant or any related entity currently hold fee title or have an option/contract to purchase the Project site?

Yes

If No, indicate name of present owner of the Project Site

Does Applicant or related entity have an option/contract to purchase the Project site?

No

Describe the present use of the proposed Project site (vacant land, existing building, etc.)

More than 700MM pounds of milk is collected at the Buffalo plant each year for dairy product production. Supporting hundreds of farms, 97%

of all milk processed at Lactalis in Buffalo comes from New York State dairy farmers. The plant produces Galbani Ricotta and Mozzarella
Cheeses, along with Whey Powder, Galbani Provoione and Président Cut-and-Wrap Brie. Lactalis produces all its Galbani Ricotta Cheese for
the United States in this facility, representing $33+MM in annua! retail sales. Galbani is the No. 1 Ricotta brand in the country. Both Galbani
and President are premier global brands. The site consists of two distinct plants- the cheese plant and the whey plant. The cheese plant

houses the production equipment to produce mozzarella, provolone, brie, and ricotta cheese. A key by-product of the cheese making process

- whey- is then pumped from the cheese plant to the whey plant. The whey plant primarily consists of the evaporator and the dryer
equipment responsible for processing the whey liquid into whey powder. The site also has shipping/receiving bays to receive raw milk, and

other raw materials, and to ship the finished cheese and whey products, all transported solely by truck. There are a number of large vats and

silos in the plants, as well as ambient and refrigerated warehouses. Finally, the site also houses an R&D facility.

Provide narrative and purpose of the proposed project {(new build, renovations) square footage of existing and new construction
contemplated and/or equipment purchases. Identify specific uses occurring within the project. Describe any and all tenants and any/all

end users: (This information is critical in determining project eligibility)

https:/Mww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100429

58

4/20



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

The South Park Dairy processing facility plans to modernize the production areas and processing lines because they date back to the 1970's.
Some building components, such as loadbearing columns, roofs, etc. have come into disrepair, and the aging manufacturing equipment
cannot keep up with current capacity/market demands. The purpose of the proposed project is to upgrade the production areas for Galbani
Ricotta and Mozzarella Cheeses, along with Whey Powder, Galbani Provolone and Président Cut-and-Wrap Brie processing production lines for
the remainder of 2023, 2024, and into the future. The plant's future economic viability needs a production capacity increase of 30%, requiring
key infrastructure upgrades for the installation of new mozzarella and ricotta cheese production equipment, a new building addition for the
whey evaporator and dryer equipment, and important regulatory plant wide infrastructure upgrades. The total project costs for the new
mozzarella and ricotta cheese capacity expansion project is estimated to cost $22.5MM in new additions and renovations, manufacturing
equipment purchases and infrastructure work. The work that's in scope for the cheese plant measures approximately 60,000 sq ft. The Whey
plant project, measuring 6000 sq ft, is estimated to costs $19.5MM in building renovations, manufacturing equipment purchases and
infrastructure work, The Whey plant project will include the installation of a new evaporator to perform the initial moisture reduction of the
liquid whey by-preduct from the cheese making process; and the subsequent installation of the dryer equipment to completely dry the liquid
whey into a dry powder to be used as a high protein food ingredient. An additional $2.5MM in estimated costs are proposed to address the
repairing, restoring, and upgrading the existing plant infrastructure, such as the replacement of an end-of-life milk silo, constructing a
receiving bay catwalk for improved worker safety, repair and replacement of failing roof system in the cheese plant, and major work on the
aging electrical infrastructure to reliably and safely function in conjunction with all the electrical upgrades that are part of the aforementioned
subprojects. The mozzarella and ricotta cheese capacity expansion projects will also require upgrades to the pasteurization equipment and
the packaging equipment to reliably handle the increased throughput. The manufacturing plant currently employees 376 staff of which 375
are full time employees, with 1 part time employee. Within 24 months post project completion, the Applicant expects to hire an additional 27
FT staff and retaining all their current 376 employees.

Municipality or Municipalities of current operations
Buffalo, NY; Walton, NY; Nampa, ID; Merrill, Wi; Belmont, WI; Wausau, WI; Turlock, CA; Tulare, CA; Battleboro, VT; Londonderry, NH; Casa
Grande, AZ

Will the Proposed Project be located within a Municipality identified above?
Yes
Will the completion of the Project result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of

the state to another area of the state OR in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located within the
state?

No

If the Proposed Project is located in a different Municipality within New York State than that Municipality in which current operations are
being undertaken, is it expected that any of the facilities in any other Municipality will be closed or be subject to reduced activity?

No
(if yes, you will need to complete the Intermunicipal Move Determination section of this application)

Is the project reasonably necessary to prevent the project occupant from moving out of New York State?
Yes

If yes, please explain and identify out-of-state locations investigated, type of assistance offered and provide supporting documentation

available
The Applicant is facing mounting pressures as it strives to maintain operations of the Buffalo plant. The post-Covid ecanomic conditions have
been challenging given supply-chain issues, recent sharp rise in interest rate, decreased access to capital, increase in the cost of goods, etc.
Furthermore, it was discovered that a competitor is constructing a new plant in New York State within 60 miles of the Buffalo plant. This will
invariably put further pressures on the aging Buffalo plant whose building structures and production equipment date back to the 1970's. The
increased competition will also put pricing pressure for locally sources raw milk, and labor talent. Should the attempts to modernize and
revitalize the plant fail to come to fruition the site risks scaling down production volumes, and production capacity would either by absorbed
into one of the Applicant's other plants across the U.S., or the possible construction of an entirely new facility at a different location. This
project is being approached in a phased manner with the objective to retain production operations at the Buffalo plant, while allowing the
Applicant to investigate potential alternatives should the economic realities in future years prevent the project's completion.

Have you contacted or been contacted by other Local, State and/or Federal Economic Development Agencies?
Yes

If yes, please indicate the Agency and nature of inquiry below
Lactalis has had preliminary discussions with Ms. Lorrie Abounader, Sr. Project Manager, Western NY, Empire State Development regarding
government grant programs for equipment. No applications have been started and an no anticipated funding to be received.

If the Project could be undertaken without Financial Assistance provided by the Agency, then provide a statement in the space provided
below indicating why the Project should be undertaken by the Agency:

https:/mww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100429 5/20

59



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Describe the reasons why the Agency’s financial assistance is necessary, and the effect the Project will have on the Applicant’s business or
operations. Focus on competitiveness issues, project shortfalls, etc... Your eligibility determination will be based in part on your answer
(attach additional pages if necessary)

A majority of the manufacturing facilities and the processing equipment date back to the 1970's. Some building components, such as load
bearing columns, roofs, etc. have come into disrepair, and the aging manufacturing equipment, cannot keep up with current capacity
demands. The plant's future economic viability needs a praduction capacity increase of 30%, requiring key infrastructure upgrades for the
installation of new mozzarella and ricotta cheese production equipment, new building addition for the whey evaporator and dryer equipment,
and important regulatory plant wide infrastructure upgrades. The Applicant also faces mounting pressures as it strives to maintain operations
of the Buffalo plant and is competing with other manufacturing facilities within Lactalis USA for limited capital investment funds. The financial
assistance and support from local government agencies play a key part in determining the future roadmap of any given facility when
determining where to make capital investments. The financial assistance sought from the Agency will have a significant impact in reducing the
large capital investment forecasted to modernize and revitalize the Buffalo plant. The Applicant estimates the Agency's financial assistance has
the potential of reducing the projects timeline by up to 18-months. This would result in the plant increasing their targeted 30% production
capacity increase sooner. The Applicant forecasts that at a minimum there would be 27 new full time positions within 24 months following the
project completion, all of which will be local hires; which will already add to the current 376 employees at the existing location and supported
by an additional 308 employees at corporate office and distribution center locations. Presently, the proposed project is the initial phase in an
overall capacity and efficiency improvement initiative at the Buffalo plant. The total cost of all project phases is slated to be over $100MM. All
planning for subsequent phases critically depend on the success of this initial phases and key learnings gained from the completion of the
proposed project.

Please confirm by checking the box, below, if there is likelihood that the Project would not be undertaken but for the Financial Assistance
provided by the Agency

Yes

If the Applicant is unable to obtain Financial Assistance for the Project, what will be the impact on the Applicant and Erie County?

Lactalis USA operates 11 dairy processing facilities in California, Arizona, Idaho, Wisconsin, Vermont, New Hampshire and New York. In
assessing the feasibility of major capex investments, and ultimately awarding major project dollars to a facility, the company looks at many
factors including the extent to which local government agencies act as partners to support these future investments. There is a real risk that
failure by the Erie County to support our future projects at the South Park facility may result in either indefinite postponement of the project
phases or the termination of such projects in favor of relocating needed capex dollars to another state/plant. The company, which presently
has 45 unfilled position and forecasts adding an additional 27 positions at completion of the project phase in 2025, may need to considerably
scale back or even eliminate hiring as it reassess the future viability of the plant and the 376 employees that currently work there. The
proposed $22MM in project costs for construction, which would invariably utilized local construction workers and locally sourced material,
would also fail to materialize. Finally, the success of the proposed project, which is the initial phase of the the plant's overall initiative to
increase progduction capacity, will have major influence on whether the subsequent phases of the project would proceed. All future phases
are forecasted to cost over $100MM, and anticipated to occur between 2026 and 2030. Understandably, this first phase, that will take place
between in 2024 and 2025, will provide the company key takeaways on how to plan and execute future project phases, including how the
local government agencies supported the company's project efforts.

Will project include leasing any equipment?

No
If yes, please describe equipment and lease terms.

Site Characteristics

Is your project located near public transportation?

Yes

If yes describe if site is accessible by either metro or bus line {provide route number for bus lines)

Project is located on South Park Avenue, a major bus route with major connections in close proximity. NFTA bus routes #14, #16, & #42,
Has your local municipality and/or its planning board made a determination regarding the State Environmental Quality Review (SEQR)
for your project?

Yes

If YES indicate in the box below the date the SEQR determination was made. Also, please provide us with a copy of the approval
resolution and the related Environmental Assessment Form (EAF) if applicable.

If NO indicate in the box below the date you anticipate receiving a SEQR determination for your project. Also, please insure that the
ECIDA has been listed as an "involved agency" on the related EAF submitted to the appropriate municipality and/or planning
department.

https /imww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100429 6/20

' 60



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Apr-10-2023

Will the Project meet zoning/land use requirements at the proposed location?

Yes

Describe the present zoning/land use
The parcels on South Park Ave. primarily are zoned D-IL. The land use primarily falls under property type code 710: Manufacturing &
Pracessing with some portion of the site classified under property type code 331: Commercial vacant land with minor improvements
Describe required zoning/land use, if different
N/A
If a change in zoning/land use is required, please provide details/status of any request for change of zoning/land use requirements
N/A
Is the proposed Project located on a site where the known or potential presence of contaminants is complicating the development/use
of the property?
No

If yes, please explain

Has a Phase | Environmental Assessment been prepared, or will one be prepared with respect to the proposed Project Site?

No
if yes, please provide a copy.

Have any other studies, or assessments been undertaken with respect to the proposed Project Site that indicate the known or
suspected presence of contamination that would complicate the site's development?

No
If yes, please provide copies of the study.

If you are purchasing new machinery and equipment, does it provide demonstrable energy efficiency benefits?
Yes

If yes, describe the efficiencies achieved

The modernization work includes the installation of new heating and cooling units that will be of higher efficiency compared to the
existing equipment, which is over 20 years ago. The energy efficiencies will be further improved with additional insulation, better system
design, improved SEER ratings, etc. The project also includes installation of new production equipment for new whey plant where the
energy source will be replaced from natural gas to electricity to drive the large electric fans. This will have a positive impact in reducing
our carbon emissions.

You may also attach additional information about the machinery and equipment at the end of the application.

Does or will the company or project occupant perform research and development activities on new products/services at the project
location?

Yes
If yes, include percentage of operating expenses attributed to R&D activities and provide details.

The Applicant allocates approximately 7% to 10% of the total operating expenses for research and development activities.

Select Project Type for all end users at project site {you may check more than one),

For purposes of the following, the term “retail sales” means (i) sales by a registered vendor under Article 28 of the Tax Law of the State of
New York (the “Tax Law"”) primarily engaged in the retail sale of tangible personal property (as defined in Section 1101(b}{4)(i) of the Tax
Law), or (i} sales of a service to customers who personally visit the Project.

Will customers personally visit the Project site for either of the following economic activities? If yes with respect to either economic activity
indicated below, you will need to complete the Retail section of this application.

Retail Sales No Services No

Please check any and all end uses as identified below.

https://iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/ 100429 7/20

61



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

No Acquisition of Existing Facility No Assisted Living No Back Office

No Civic Facility (not for profit) No Commercial No Equipment Purchase
No Facility for the Aging No Industrial No Life Care Facility (CCRC)
No Market Rate Housing No Mixed Use No Multi-Tenant

No Retail No Senior Housing Yes Manufacturing

No Renewable Energy No Other

Eor proposed facility please include the square footage for each of the uses outlined below

If applicant is paying for FFE for tenants, include in cost breakdown.

Cost % of Total Cost
Manufacturing/Processing 66,000 square feet 5 44,526,000 100%
Warehouse square feet S 0 0%
Research & Development square feet $ 0 0%
Commercial square feet S 0 0%
Retail square feet $ 0 0%
Office square feet $ 0 0%
Specify Other square feet $ 0 0%

If you are undertaking new construction or renovations, are you seeking LEED certification from the US Green Building Council?

No

If you answered yes to question above, what level of LEED certification do you anticipate receiving? (Check applicable box)

<BLANK>

Provide estimate of additional construction cost as a result of < BLANK >
LEED certification you are seeking

Will project result in significant utility infrastructure cost or uses Yes

What is the estimated project timetable (provide dates)
Start date : acquisition of equipment or construction of facilities
1/1/2024

End date : Estimated completion date of project
12/31/2025

Project occupancy : estimated starting date of occupancy
4/1/2024

Capital Project Plan / Budget

Estimated costs in connection with Project
1.) Land and/or Building Acquisition
$0 square feet

2.) New Building Construction
S0 square feet

https.//iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100429

62

acres

8/20



10/2/123, 9:15 AM

3.) New Building addition(s)
S 1,075,000

4.} Reconstruction/Renovation
$19,002,212

5.) Manufacturing Equipment
$ 21,607,000

6.) Infrastructure Work
$2,841,788

7.) Non-Manufacturing Equipment: {furniture, fixtures, etc.)

$0

8.) Soft Costs: (Legal, architect, engineering, etc.)
50

9.) Other Cost

SO
Explain Other
Costs
Total Cost $ 44,526,000

Construction Cost Breakdown:
Total Cost of Construction
Cost of materials

% sourced in Erie County

Sales and Use Tax:

Gross amount of costs for goods and services that are subject to
State and local sales and use tax- said amount to benefit from the
Agency's sales and use tax exemption benefit

Estimated State and local Sales and Use Tax Benefit (product of
8.75% multiplied by the figure, above}):

The Erie County industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

6,000 square feet

60,000 square feet

$ 22,919,000 {sum of 2, 3, 4 and 6 in Project Information, above)
S 13,751,400
70%

$ 13,751,400

$1,203,247

** Note that the estimate provided above will be provided to the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance. The Applicant
acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant by the Applicant to undertake the total amount of investment as
proposed within this Application, and that the estimate, above, represents the maximum amount of sales and use tax benefit that the Agency
may authorize with respect to this Application. The Agency may utilize the estimate, above, as well as the proposed total Project Costs as
contained within this Application, to determine the Financial Assistance that will be offered.

Project refinancing estimated amount, if applicable (for
refinancing of existing debt only)

Have any of the above costs been paid or incurred as of the date
of this Application?

If Yes, describe particulars:

Sources of Funds for Project Costs:
Equity (excluding equity that is attributed to grants/tax credits):
Bank Financing:
Tax Exempt Bond Issuance (if applicable):

Taxable Bond Issuance (if applicable):

https:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/ 100429

$0

No

$0
50
$0

63

9/20



10/2/23, 9:15 AM

Public Sources (Include sum total of all state and federal grants SO
and tax credits):

Identify each state and federal grant/credit: (ie Historic Tax
Credit, New Market Tax Credit, Brownfield, Cleanup Program,
ESD, other public sources)

Total Sources of Funds for Project Costs: S0

Have you secured financing for the project? No

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit:
Amount of mortgage, if any that would be subject to mortgage recording tax:

Mortgage Amount {include sum total of
construction/permanent/bridge financing).

Lender Name, if Known

Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption Benefit (product of SO
mortgage amount as indicated above multiplied by 3/4 of 1%):

Real Property Tax Benefit:

ldentify and describe if the Project will utilize a real property
tax exemption benefit other than the Agency’s PILOT benefit
(485-a, 485-h, other):

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

{DA PILOT Benefit: Agency staff will indicate the estimated amount of PILOT Benefit based on estimated Project Costs as contained herein and
anticipated tax rates and assessed valuation, including the annual PILOT Benefit abatement amount for each year of the PILOT benefit and the
sum total of PILOT Benefit abatement amount for the term of the PILOT as depicted in the PILOT worksheet in the additional document

section.

Percentage of Project Costs financed from Public Sector sources: Agency staff will calculate the percentage of Project Costs financed from
Public Sector sources based upon the Sources of Funds for Project Costs as depicted above. The percentage of Project Costs financed from
public sector sources will be depicted in the PILOT worksheet in the additional document section.

Is project necessary to expand project employment?
Yes

Is project necessary to retain existing employment?
Yes

Will project include leasing any equipment?
No

if yes, please describe equipment and lease terms.

Employment Plan (Specific to the proposed project location),

The Labor Market Area consists of the following six counties: Erie, Niagara, Chautauqua, Cattaraugus, Wyoming and Genessee.

By statute, Agency staff must project the number of FTE jobs that would be retained and created if the request for Financial Assistance is
granted. Agency staff will project such jobs over the TWO Year time period following Project completion. Agency staff converts PT jobs into

FTE jobs by dividing the number of PT jobs by two (2).

If financial assistance is
granted - project the
number of FT and PT

jobs to be retained

Current # of jobs at
proposed project
location or to be

relocated at project

location

hitps /Avww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100429

64

If financial assistance is
granted - project the
number of FT and PT

jobs to be created upon
24 months (2 years)

after Project completion

Estimate number of
residents of the Labor
Market Area in which
the project is located
that will fill the FT and
PT jobs to be created

10/20



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
upon 24 months (2
years) after project
completion **

Full time 375 375 27 27
Part time 1 il 0 0
Total 376 376 27

Salary and Fringe Benefits for Jobs to be Retained and Created

Joh Categories # of Full Time Average Average Fringe # of Part Time Average Average Fringe
Employees retained Salary for Benefits for Employees retained Salary for Benefits for
and created Full Time Full Time and created Part Time Part Time

Professional 35 $ 92,807 $ 16,000 0 $0 $0

Administrative 16 $55,110 $7,164 0 $0 $0

Production 288 $ 54,465 $4,357 1 $50,115 $ 4,009

Independent 4 $ 48,235 $O 0 $0 50

Contractor

Other 0 $0 $0 0 50 S0

Total 402 1

** Note that the Agency may utilize the foregoing employment projections, among other items, to determine the financial assistance
that will be offered by the Agency to the Applicant. The Applicant acknowledges that the transaction documents may include a covenant
by the Applicant to retain the number of jobs and create the number of jobs with respect to the Project as set forth in this Application.

Yes By checking this box, | certify that the above information concerning the current number of jobs at the proposed project
location or to be relocated to the proposed project location is true and correct.

Employment at other locations in Erie County: (provide address and number of employees at each location):

2376 South Park Avenue, 500 Seneca Street, Buffalo, NY 2375 South Park Avenue,
Address Buffalo, NY 14220 14220 Buffalo, NY 14220 (Distribution
Center)
Full time 183 56 59
Part time 1 1 4
Total 184 57 63

Payroll Information

Annual Payroll at Proposed Project Site upon completion
22,277,956

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be retained (Full Time)
77,112

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be retained (Part Time)
52,119

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be created {Full Time)
47,515

Estimated average annual salary of jobs to be created (Part Time)
0

Estimated salary range of jobs to be created

From (Full Time)} 47,515 To (Full Time) 47,515
From (Part Time) O To (Part Time} O
https:/imww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100429 11/20

65



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

I Section lI: Environmental Questionnaire

INSTRUCTIONS: Please complete the following questionnaire as completely as possible. If you need additional space to fully answer any
question, please attach additional page(s).

General Background Information

Address of Premises
2375 South Park Avenue, Buffalo, NY 14220

Name and Address of Owner of Premises
Sorrento Lactalis, Inc. 2376 South Park Avenue, Buffalo, NY 14220

Describe the general features of the Premises {include terrain, location of wetlands, coastlines, rivers, streams, lakes, etc.)

Premises is located on South Park Avenue, in a mixed use commercial district. The existing manufacturing site is approx. 16.0 acres or
697,339 Sq ft with the manufacturing facility taking up approx. 5.0 acres / 216,000 Sq ft one-story. The site also houses a distribution
center approx. 1.6 acres or 70,000 Sq ft and has some ancillary parking. There are no wetlands, coastlines, rivers, etc.

Describe the Premises {including the age and date of construction of any improvements) and each of the operations or processes
carried out on or intended to be carried on at the Premises

Originally, Sorrento Cheese was founded by Louis Russo in 1947, That company moved to current plant location in 1960 and produced
mozzarella and ricotta cheese. Sorrento Cheese was acquired by Besnier (Group Lactalis) in 1991. A major plant expansion project was
undertaken in 1993 for retail mozzarella production. In 1997, the plant was expanded to house the shred department. Ricotta
Production volume were doubled in 1997. Lactalis US Operations took the name Sorrento Lactalis in 1999, and established their
corporate headquarters in Buffalo. DC Warehouse expansion was completed in 2000 and autopalletization was implemented in 2007.
The company added the cut &wrap (Brie) department in 2012, a new whey bagger line in 2015 and two new packaging line- Mozzarella
& Provolone in 2016.

Describe all known former uses of the Premises
The primary use of the plant is for the production of cheese.

Does any person, firm or corporation other than the owner occupy the Premises or any part of it?
No

If yes, please identify them and describe their use of the property

Have there been any spills, releases or unpermitted discharges of petroleum, hazardous substances, chemicals or hazardous wastes
at or near the Premises?

No

If yes, describe and attach any incident reports and the results of any investigations

Has the Premises or any part of it ever been the subject of any enforcement action by any federal, state or local government entity, or
does the preparer of this questionnaire have knowledge of: a) any current federal, state or local enforcement actions; b) any areas of
non-compliance with any federal, state or local laws, ordinances, rules or regulations associated with operations over the past 12
months?

No

If yes, please state the results of the enforcement action (consent order, penaities, no action, etc.) and describe the circumstances

Has there been any filing of a notice of citizen suit, or a civil complaint or other administrative or criminal procedure involving the
Premises?

No

If yes, describe in full detail

https:/imww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100429 12/20

66



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

Solid And Hazardous Wastes And Hazardous Substances

Does any activity conducted or contemplated to be conducted at the premises generate, treat or dispose of any petroleum,
petroleum-related products, solid and hazardous wastes or hazardous substances?

No

If yes, provide the Premises' applicable EPA (or State) identification number

Have any federal, state or local permits been issued to the Premises for the use, generation and/or storage of solid and hazardous
wastes?

No

If yes, please provide copies of the permits.

Identify the transporter of any hazardous and/or solid wastes to or from the Premises
N/A

Identify the solid and hazardous waste disposal or treatment facilities which have received wastes from the Premises for the past two
(2) years

N/A

Does or is it contemplated that there will occur at the Premises any accumulation or storage of any hazardous wastes on-site for
disposal for longer than 90 days?

No

If yes, please identify the substance, the quantity and describe how it is stored

Discharge Into Waterbodies

Briefly describe any current or contemplated industrial process discharges (including the approximate volume, source, type and
number of discharge points). Please provide copies of all permits for such discharges

N/A

Identify all sources of discharges of water, including discharges of waste water, process water, contact or noncontact cooling water,
and stormwater. Attach all permits relating to the same. Also identify any septic tanks on site

Waste water discharge under Buffalo Sewer Authority BPDES Permit No. 21-03-BUO&0. Storm drain

Is any waste discharged into or near surface water or groundwaters?
No

If yes, please describe in detail the discharge including not only the receiving water's classification, but a description of the type and
quantity of the waste

Air Pollution

Are there or is it contemplated that there will be any air emission sources that emit contaminants from the Premises?
No

If yes, describe each such source, including whether it is a stationary combustion installation, process source, exhaust or ventilation
system, incinerator or other source

Are any of the air emission sources permitted?
No

If yes, attach a copy of each permit.

Storage Tanks

https:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/ 100429 13/20
67



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

List and describe all above and under ground storage tanks at the Premises used to store petroleum or gasoline products, or other

chemicals or wastes, including the contents and capacity of each tank. Please also provide copies of any registrations/permits for the
tanks

N/A
Have there been any leaks, spills, releases or other discharges (including loss of inventory) associated with any of these tanks?
No

If yes, please provide all details regarding the event, including the response taken, all analytical results or reports developed through
investigation (whether internal or external), and the agencies which were involved

Polychlorinated Biphenyls ("PCB" or "PCBs") And Asbestos

Provide any records in your possession or known to you to exist concerning any on-site PCBs or PCB equipment, whether used or
stored, and whether produced as a byproduct of the manufacturing process or otherwise.

Have there been any PCB spills, discharges or other accidents at the Premises?
No

If yes, relate all the circumstances

Do the Premises have any asbestos containing materials?
No

If yes, please identify the materials

https:/Amww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/ 100429 14/20

68



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

lr Section IV: Facility Type - Single or Multi Tenant

Is this a Single Use Facility or a Multi-Tenant Facility?
Single Use Facility

Eor Single Use Facility

Occupant Name  Lactalis American Group, Inc.
Address 2376 South Park Avenue, Buffalo, NY 14220
Contact Person  Jim Kourtis
Phone (647) 784-5567
Fax
E-Mail  jim.kourtis@ca.lactalis.com
Federal ID #

SIC/NAICS Code 3115 ss

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/ 100429 15/20

69



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

[ Section VI: Retail Determination

To ensure compliance with Section 862 of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency requires additional information if the proposed
Project is one where customers personally visit the Project site to undertake either a retail sale transaction or to purchase services.

Please answer the following:

Will any portion of the project {including that portion of the costs to be financed from equity or other sources) consist of facilities or
property that are or will be primarily used in making sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the project site?

No
If yes, complete the Retail Questionnaire Supplement below. If no, proceed to the next section.

https:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/ 100429 16/20

70



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

[, Section VIi: Adaptive Reuse Projects

Adaptive Reuse is the process of adapting old structures or sites for new purposes.

Are you applying for tax incentives under the Adaptive Reuse Program?
No

https./mww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100429 17120

71



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

L Section VIlI: Inter-Municipal Move Determination

The Agency is required by state law to make a determination that, if completion of a Project benefiting from Agency Financial Assistance
results in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the project occupant from one area of the state to another area of the
state or in the abandonment of ane or more plants or facilities of the project occupant located within the state, Agency financial Assistance
is required to prevent the project occupant from relocating out of the state, or is reasonably necessary to preserve the project occupant's
competitive position in its respective industry.

Current Address
City/Town

State

Zip Code

Will the project result in the removal of an industrial or manufacturing plant of the Project occupant from one area of the state to
another area of the state?

No
Will the project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Project occupant located within the state?
No

If Yes to either question, explain how, notwithstanding the aforementioned closing or activity reduction, the Agency's Financial
Assistance is required to prevent the Project from relocating out of the State, or is reasonably necessary to preserve the Project
occupant's competitive position in its respective industry:

Does this project involve relocation or consolidation of a project occupant from another municipality?
Within New York State <BLANK>
Within Erie County <BLANK>

If Yes to either question, please, explain

Will the project result in a relocation of an existing business operation from the City of Buffalo?
<BLANK>

If yes, please explain the factors which require the project occupant to relocate out of the City of Buffalo (For example, present site is
not large enough, or owner will not renew leases etc.)

What are some of the key requirements the project occupant is looking for in a new site? (For example, minimum sq. ft., 12 foot
ceilings, truck loading docs etc.)

If the project occupant is currently located in Erie County and will be moving to a different municipality within Erie County, has the

project occupant attempted to find a suitable location within the municipality in which it is currently located?
<BLANK>

What factors have lead the project occupant to consider remaining or locating in Erie County?
If the current facility is to be abandoned, what is going to happen to the current facility that project occupant is located in?

Please provide a list of properties considered, and the reason they were not adequate. (Some examples include: site not large
enough, layout was not appropriate, did not have adequate utility service, etc.) Please include full address for locations.

hitps:/iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100429 18/20

72



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

[ section IX: Senior Housing

IDA tax incentives may be granted to projects under the Agency’s Senior Citizen Rental Housing policy when the project consists of a multi-
family housing structure where at least 90% of the units are (or are intended to be) rented to and occupied by a person who is 60 years of
age or older.

Are you applying for tax incentives under the Senior Rental Housing policy?
No

hitps://iwww.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100429 19/20

73



10/2/23, 9:15 AM The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)

E Section X: Tax Exempt Bonds

In order to receive the benefits of a tax-exempt interest rate bond, private borrowers and their projects must be eligible under one of the
federally recognized private active bond categories (Fed Internal Rev Code IRC sections 142-144, and 1394),

Are you applying for tax exempt bonds / refinancing of bonds related to a residential rental facility project?
No

https://www.ecidany.com/app/tax-incentive-application-2019/print/100429 20/20

74



V4 3 W

i b g
%

D :

. Rz : )N
THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COUNTY

Policy Committee Monthly Meeting Schedule — 2024
1t Thursday of the month except for July & September

at 9:00 a.m.

January 4
February 1
March 7
April 4
May 2
June 6
July 11
August 1
September 12
October 3
November 7

December 5

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 » ph. 716.865.6525 » fx. 716.856.6754 » www.ecidany.com

75



